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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members
Star Wire (India) Limited,

Dear Members,

Your directors are pleased to present their 59 Annual Board’s Report on the performance and
achievements of your company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2022

1. Financial Highlights

Revenues from operations & Operating Income for the year ended March 31, 2022 stood at
Rs.83956.54/- lakhs, significantly up by approximately 43% ,as compared to Rs. 58760.46/-
lakhs in FY 21 in spite of impact of lockdown during first quarter of the year. The revenue
growth is on account of improved volume offtake and better average selling prices.

Export sales during the year under review were Rs. 38934 lacs as compared to
Rs.23092 lacs in previous year. Exports comprised of 49% of total revenue of company
during FY22 as against 41% in FY 21.

Profit before Finance cost, depreciation, exceptional items and tax
(PBDITA) during the year FY 22 is Rs.15800 lacs from Rs.12157 Lacs in
revious year. The company has been able to sustain its margins inspite of
withdrawl of MSME export benefit scheme to steel sector which impacted
the margins by approximately Rs.700 lacs :

Net profit for the year stood at Rs.11426 Lacs as against Rs.8673 lacs- a jump of 32%
over FY 21.

Your Company is continuously engaged in up-gradation and modernization of Plant &
Machineries so as to achieve the process improvement and manufacture the quality products
with optimized cost.

1.1. Your Company achieved the following results during FY 2021-22:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Profit before depreciation, Interest and 15864.52 12740.15
Tax

Less: Interest* 2301.88 2040.43
Depreciation 2137.04 2026.31
Profit before tax 11425.60 8673.41
Less: Current Tax 2555.64 1726.94
Deferred Tax 413.69 447.30
Income Tax expense of earlier years 131.32 00.00
Profit after tax 8324.95 6499.17
Add: Balance b/f from previous year 35677.46 29178.29
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Total 44002.41 35677.46
Less: Appropriations:

Proposed Dividend on:

Preference Shares - 0.00 0.00
Equity Shares 0.00 0.00
Dividend Distribution Tax 0.00 0.00
Profit carried forward to Balance Sheet 44002.41 35677.46

*The Interest Amount includes Rs.14.16 lacs/- towards Di vidend on Redeemable Preference Shares
& Taxes thereon.

The dedicated diagnostic laboratory of the company which performs testing like Chemical,
Mechanical & Metallurgical Testing of Steel and Alloys of Aluminium, Copper, Zinc, Lead, Tin,
Nickel, Titanium etc along with various Non Destructive Testing (NDT) like Ultrasonic Testing
(UT), Radiography, Dye Penetrations (DP) Test, MPI etc., Failure Analysis and Corrosion Test of
Metals &Alloys has also performed reasonably well during the year clocking receipts of INR
361.34 lacs as against INR 330.85 lacs for F Y2020-21 in-spite of pandemic effect. The figures in
table above are inclusive of such incomes from diagnostic center.

Future Outlook & Expansion:

Your company is continuously working upon to evolve the best production techniques and
processes so as to improve production efficiency and optimize cost by efficient utilization of
resources.

The R & D team of your company is further working upon to develop high exotic grades of steel
in valve steel segment in line with the requirement of OEM customers due to switch to hybrid
and semi hybrid IC Engines. The company aims to tap the burgeoning demand in valve steel
segment with expansion of its existing manufacturing set up. It is quite confident of achieving
significant volume growth as well as realization in Valve steel segment with said initiatives.

. Your company expects to receive further benefits during upcoming year on account of the

investments in cost saving and capacity expansions as completed in earlier years. This should
further contribute to sustain/ increase the operational margin for next financial year onwards and
strengthen our competitive positioning

The project for supply and installation of Vacuum Induction Machine(VIM) has been
completed and will help company to produce super-alloys/titanium based material for Defense,
Aerospace and Automotive sectors.

The project for shifting of foundry operations to Plant-II with addition of modern equipment will
provide larger space to cast larger dia castings and reduce the costs. The project is likely to be
taken up in FY 22-23.

The efforts of company on development of high performance materials to be used for application
in marine, aerospace and defense sectors are continuing.
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2.77. With a view to expand existing business and enter into new areas of business, your company has

tied up with experts in overseas countries to provide opportunities for new product development
and customers.

2.8.  Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan led by Government of India is giving significant push to
self reliance and local production which is most likely will favorably impact the
operations of company.

29.  Your Company would also wish to increase the hot working capacity and capability by
installing the 1060mm 2 Hi Reversing Mill which was purchased from Tata Corus, UK.
An increase in hot working capacity & capability will give a direct boost to
the Company’s Turnover as most of the special products/ future products require hot
working of large section Ingots/ blooms, and the Management now realizes that lack of
such facilities is a major constraint in achieving a quantum jump in sales,

Dividend & Transfer to General Reserve

Your Directors, this year also, have decided not to recommend dividend to equity shareholders, for
the long term growth objectives of the Company which are to be met by internal cash accruals.
However, your Directors are pleased to recommend 1 % Dividend on Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares, Series-Iand 4% Dividend on Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares,
Series-II to the Preference Shareholders, which is payable on obtaining Share Holders approval in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year no amount has been transferred to General Reserve by the Company.

Preference Share Capital:

During the financial year, the company made Variation in terms and conditions of 2540500 4%
Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares, Series-I, reducing rate of Dividend from 4% to
1% w.ef. 01.04.2021.

Credit Rating:

Credit rating of company has been upgraded during year at CRISIL “A+” with stable outlook.

Impact of Business due to COVID-19

Financial Year 2021-22

The production activities were affected during first quarter of FY 22. However, post resumption
and by following social distancing and sanitization, company has ramped up fast to reach to pre-
covid level of operations and achieved the best ever financial performance in terms of improved
EBIDTA, PBT and PAT.

Debt Obligations

With emphasis on collection of receivables and better working capital management, company has
been able to meet all its debt obligations as per schedule.

Deposits
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During the year under review your Company has not accepted any deposits during the year, no
deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year and there was no default in
repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year within the meaning of Section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014.

Subsidiary/Associate Company
As on March 31, 2022, the Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company.

Change in the Nature of Business:

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during financial year ended March
31, 2022.

Directors

10.1 As per the Companies Act, 2013 the provisions in respect of retirement of directors by rotation

will not be applicable to Independent Directors, in view of this, no independent director is
considered to be retiring by rotation but all other directors except Managing Director as per AOA
of the company, will be retiring by rotation accordingly , one third among all other directors
namely Mrs. Rekha Gupta (DIN 00054073) and Mrs. Mahima Gupta (DIN 02237504), Directors
are liable to retire by rotation, are retiring at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

10.2 Independent Directors

Mr. Pankaj Jain and Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala hold the office for the term of five
years ending on 29.03.2027 and 30.05.2027 respectively. '
During the year, Mrs. Sugandha Saigal (DIN: 08648443) was appointed as an Independent
Director of the company w.e.f 26™ April, 2021 and has been resigned onl8th January,
2022.

Mr. Sunil Kumar Roy, has been appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
by the Board for consecutive 5 years with effect from 27.08.2022, his appointment forms
part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the resolution is recommended for
your approval for regularizing his appointment as a Director (Under Section 161 of
Companies Act, 2013) and his appointment as an Independent Director.

Profile and terms and conditions for his appointment as an Independent Director is
available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company.

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Director that he meets the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

They are not liable to retire by rotation in terms of Section 149(13) of the Act.
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10.3 Governance Guidelines:

The Board of the Company has adopted Governance Guidelines on Board Effectiveness.
The Guidelines cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman and
Directors, Board diversity, definition of independent Director Term, retirement age and
Committees of the Board. It also covers aspects relating to nomination, appointment,
induction and development of Directors, Director Remuneration, Code of Conduct, Board
Effectiveness Review and Mandates of Board Committees.

10.4 Procedure for Nomination and Appointment of Directors:

The Nomination Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing competency
requirements for the Board based on the industry and strategy of the Company. The Board
composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company, including its
strategies, environment, operations, and financial condition and compliance requirements.

The Nomination Remuneration Committee conducts a gap analysis to refresh the Board on
a periodic basis, including each time a Director’s appointment or re-appointment is
required. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing the profiles of potential
candidate’s vis-a-vis the required competencies and meeting potential candidates, prior to
making recommendations of their nomination to the Board. At the time of appointment,
specific requirements for the position, including expert knowledge expected, is
communicated to the appointee.

10.5 Declaration and meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have declared that they meet the criteria of
Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that there is no change
in their status of Independence. A separate meeting of Independent Directors in line with the
statutory provisions was held on 28.07.2021, wherein all Independent Directors were present. The
Independent Directors in the meeting:

L. Reviewed the performance of non-independent Directors including Managing Director &
CEO and the Board as a whole;

II. ~ The Company on a regular basis, makes detailed presentation to the entire Board
including Independent Directors on the Company’s operations and business plans,
strategy, global and domestic business environment. Such presentations are made
by the senior management, so that the Independent Directors can have direct
interaction with them. The Board members are provided with necessary documents /
brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarize with the
Company’s procedures and practices.

III. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.
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10.6 Board Evaluation:

i) Performance Evaluation of the Independent Directors and Other Individual Directors:

The Company has framed a policy for Appointment of Directors and Senior Management and
Evaluation of Directors’ Performance (“Board Evaluation Policy”). The said policy sets out
criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, other Non- Executive Directors and
the Executive Directors,

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board carries out the performance evaluation of all the
Directors (including Independent Directors) on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the criteria mentioned in the Board Evaluation Policy. The
Board decided that the performance evaluation of Directors should be done by the entire Board
of Directors excluding the Director being evaluated and unanimously agreed on the following
assessment criteria for evaluation of Directors’ performance:

a. Attendance and active participation in the Meetings;

b. Bringing one’s own experience to bear on the items for discussion;
¢. Governance — i) Awareness ii) Observance; and

d. Value addition to the business aspects of the Company.

ii) Performance Evaluation of Executive Director:

The performance of the Managing Director and/or CEO is evaluated on the basis of achievement
of performance targets/ criteria given to him by the Board from time to time.

iii) Performance Evaluation by the Board of its own performance and its Committees:

The performance of the Board is evaluated by the Board in the overall context of by the Board of
the Company’s principle and values, philosophy and mission statement, strategic and business
plans and demonstrating this through its action on important matters, the effectiveness of the
Board and the respective Committees in providing guidance to the management of the Company
and keeping them informed, open communication, the constructive participation of members and
prompt decision making, level of attendance in the Board meetings, constructive participation in
the discussion on the Agenda items, monitoring cash flow, profitability, income & expenses,
productivity & other financial indicators, so as to ensure that the Company achieves its planned
results, effective discharge of the functions and roles of the Board etc. The performance of the
Committees is evaluated by the members of the respective Committees on the basis of the
Committee effectively performing the responsibility as outlined in its Charter, Committee
meetings held at appropriate frequency, length of them meetings being appropriate, open
communication & constructive participation of members and prompt decision-making etc.

iv) Meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and
strategy apart from other Board business. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled and
a tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors
well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in
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the meetings. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is
taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted and confirmed in
the subsequent Board meeting. During the year, 11 meetings of the Board of Directors were held
on 07.06.2021, 21.07.2021, 24.08.2021, 28.08.2021, 23.09.2021, 20.10.2021, 11.11.2021,
24.11.2021, 20.01.2022, 21.02.2022 and on 08.03.22.

12. Committees of the Board of Directors

Your Company has duly constituted the Committees required under the Act read with
applicable Rules made under.

The Board has constituted the following Committees:
i) Audit Committee

i) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

iii)  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

11.1 Audit Committee:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted
Audit Committee. As on 31% March, 2022, the Audit Committee comprised the following

Directors:

I. Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson

2. Mr. Pankaj Jain, Member (Independent Director)

3. Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala, Member (Independent Director)

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.
a. Meetings of Audit Committee

Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year ended on 31* March, 2022 on 12.05.2021,
20.07.2021, 02.11.2021 and on 28.02.2022 and the gap between two meetings was not more than
one hundred twenty days.

The quorum for the Audit Committee meetings is either two members or one third of the members
of the Audit Committee whichever is greater, but there should be a minimum of two independent
members present.

b. Powers of Audit Committee
The powers of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

- To seek information on and from any employee.

. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

- To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary,
. To protect whistle blowers.

- To consider other matters as referred by the Board.

(A RV I SRS I )

¢. Role of Audit Committee

The Role of the Audit Committee includes the following:
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Oversight of our Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommendation to the Board regarding fixation of audit fee to be paid to statutory auditors
under the Companies Act and approval for payment with respect to any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual Financial statements and Auditors’ Report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included
in the Board’s report in terms of Clause (¢) of Sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings.
Compliance with requirements relating to Financial Statements.

Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions.

Qualifications in the draft Audit Report.

Reviewing/examine, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before
submission to the Board for approval. :

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the end use/ utilization of proceeds of a public
or rights issue & related matters and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up steps in this matter.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy
of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and / or auditors any significant findings and follow up there
on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/auditors/agencies
into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems
of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
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To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review / oversee the functioning of vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower mechanism of
Company;

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the Comptroller & Auditor General
audit.

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor
and the Board.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

Review all related party transactions in the Company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee
may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions;

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness
of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and
security; and

Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor,
together with the management responses.

Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent
auditor:

- Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations:

and

Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of
activities or access to required information.

Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.

Review of information by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1.

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
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2. Statement of significant related party transactions submitted by management.

hat

Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.
4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

All the recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.
11.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company had constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with the
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of directors and recommends to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for
the Directors, Key managerial Personnel and other employees. The brief terms of the policy framed
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(4) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder are as follows:

a) The Committee shall ensure formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

b) The committee shall ensure that the level and compositi&gn of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

¢) The committee shall also ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

d) The committee shall also ensure that the remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel
and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals.

The Key Objectives of the Committee are:

1. Formulation of the criteria for detcrmining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent, Directors and the Board;

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal. The Company shall disclose the remuneration policy and

the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

5. Assessing and reviewing the performance of Senior/ Top Management Employees of the
Company and recommend their remuneration package as per Policy of the Company after
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considering the employment scenario, remuneration package of the industry and
remuneration package of the managerial talent of other industries.

During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 two meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were held on 12.05.2021 and on 15.01.2022. The composition of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by the Directors is
as under:

Name of Director Category Designation
1. | Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Non-Executive Chairperson
Director
2.| Mr. Pankaj Jain Non-Executive Member
Independent Director
3. | Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala Non-Executive Member
Independent Director

Remuneration Policy of the Company

The Company's remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual
employees and the Company. Company’s Compensation philosophy is to align Directors and
compensation with our business objectives, so that compensation is used as a strategic tool that
helps us recruit, motivate and retain highly talented individuals who are committed to our core
values

We believe that our compensation programs are integral to achieving our goals. Through its
compensation program, the Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high-
performance workforce. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance of the
Company.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Managing Director, Whole Time Directors
and other Directors. Increments are decided by the Compensation Committee within the salary
scale approved by the Board and Shareholders. Executive Directors are not entitled to sitting

fees for attending meeting of directors.

11.3 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. A brief outline of the Company’s
CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the weblink to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

In alignment with the “Vision” of the Company, Star Wire (India) Limited, through its CSR
initiatives, will continue to enhance value creation in the society and in the community in which it
operates, through its services, conduct & initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the
society and community, in fulfillment of its role as a Socially Responsible Corporate, with
environmental concern.

The policy encompasses the Company’s philosophy, its responsibility as a corporate citizen and
lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare &
sustainable development of the community at large. The policy shall apply to all CSR initiatives
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and activities taken up by the Company, for the benefit of different segments of the society,
specifically the old Age, deprived, under privileged and differently abled persons.

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:-

1. Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson,
2. Mr. Pankaj Jain (member) and
3. Mr. Abhishek Gupta (member).

During the year ended on 31 March, 2022 the Committee met 4 time on 12.05.2021, 20.07.2021,
02.11.2021 and on 28.02.2022.

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of:

e formulating and recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR
Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company,

e Monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the
amount to be spent on CSR activities.

e Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of
Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

Your company has not directly or indirectly:
a) given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances.

b) given any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate
or person and

¢) acquired by way of subscription purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate.

Your company has not accepted deposits from public as envisaged under Sections 73 to 76 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Information required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings/outgo is included in Annexure A.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the Ordinary Course of
Business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. The Audit Committee granted omnibus approval for
the transactions (which are repetitive in nature) and the same was reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year
2021-22 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required
under IND AS-24 have been made in Note 33.9 of the Notes to the financial statements. Detail of
Related Party Transactions has been given under Form AOC-2 attached herewith as Annexure B
to this Report.

Extract of Annual Return

An extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as on March 31, 2022 is available on company’s
website. (web-link: http://www.starwire.in/assets/docs/AnnualReturn.pdf)

Risk Management Policy

Your Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The Company through a Steering Committee
oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact assessment, effective
implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting.

Internal Control System

A strong internal control system is pervasive in the Company. The Company has documented a
robust and comprehensive internal control system for all the major processes to ensure reliability
of financial reporting.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations.

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operations were observed. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper
and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a robust system for internal financial closure, certification mechanism for
certifying adherence to various accounting policies, accounting hygiene and accuracy of provisions
and other estimates.

Particulars of Employees and Related disclosures

Pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules are provided in the Annexure
-C forming part of the Annual Report.

Auditors

21.1. Statutory Auditor

M/s PRYD & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants will complete their present term on
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
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qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. The Notes on financial statement referred
to in the Auditors’ Report are self explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

The Board has recommended the appointment of M/s. P.D. Mittal & Co., Chartered Accountants,
as Auditors of the Company, for a period from the conclusion of fifty-ninth Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of Sixtieth (60th) Annual General Meeting of the Company. M/s. P.D.
Mittal & Co., Chartered Accountants, have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required
under the Act for holding the office as Auditors of the Company

21.2. Cost Auditor

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Cost Audit Records maintained by the Company is required to
be audited. The Board of Directors had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed
M/s. S. Chander & Associates, (Regn. No: 100105) Cost Accountants, Delhi for conducting the cost
audit of the Company for Financial Year 2022-23.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, resolution seeking ratification
for remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditors is included at Item No.06 of the Notice convening
Annual General Meeting.

21.3. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, your Company has engaged
the services of MY/s. Saurabh Agrawal & Co. Company Secretaries in Practice, Dethi to conduct the

Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

The Secretarial Audit Report (in Form MR-3) is attached as Annexure- D to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

The Company is compliant with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

18.4 Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,
as Internal Auditor pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 to carry internal
audit.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives:

The Company has been carrying out various Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities in the areas of primary education, vocational training, health, eradication of
hunger, etc. These activities are carried out in terms of Section 135 read with Schedule
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VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities undertaken by the Company is annexed
herewith as Annexure E. The CSR Policy is available on the web-link:
http:/ /www.starwire.in/CSRPolicy.pdf

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of financial year (March 31, 2022) and the date of the Report August 27, 2022).

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Board of Directors had approved the Policy on Vigil
Mechanism/ Whistle Blower. This Policy inter-alia provides a direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee has been denied access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on

Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 &
the Rules there under for prevention and Redressal of Complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.
Further Company is committed to providing equal opportunities without regard to their race, caste,
sex, religion, color, nationality, disability etc. (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) as
well as any women visiting the Company's premises or women service providers are covered under
this policy. All employees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain a work environment free
from Sexual harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological.

During Fiscal year 2022 there were no complaints received or pending for disposal.

Order by Court or Tribunal

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would
impact the going concern status of the Company & its future operations.

Details of application made or proceeding pending under insolvency and bankruptcy code,
2016:

During the year under review, there were no application made or proceeding pending in the name
of the Company under IBC, 2016

Details of difference between valuation amount on valuation and one time settlement (0TS)
while availing loan from banks and financial institutions.
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During the year under review, there were no one time settlement of loans taken from banks and
financial institutions.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Annual Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Directors of your Company state and confirm that:

1.

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the FY 2021 -22, the applicable Ind-AS accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company
for year ended on that date;

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safe guarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Compliance with Secretarial Standard

The Company has complied with the secretarial standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (5S-2).

Acknowledgement

You Director place on record their appreciation their employees at all levels, who have contributed
to the growth and performance of the Company.

Your Directors also thank the clients, vendors, bankers and Shareholder of the Company for their
continued support.
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Your Directors also thank the Central and State Governments and any other statutory authorities for
their continued support.

Place: New Delhi For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date: 27.08.2022
(Mohmder Kumar Gupta) (Samir Gupta)
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN-00054110 DIN-00054308
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‘Annexure A’ to Directors’ Report

Particulars of conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange

(A) Conservation of Energy

Your company is working very closely with Petroleum Conservation Research Association
(PCRA). New Delhi to take various measures to control the energy consumptions in re-rolling
furnaces, heat treatment furnaces, Mass flow system and PID controller are being put to bring down
the energy consumption. Regular audits are being undertaken by PCRA and effective measures are

being taken from time to time to conserve the energy.

-

The details of Power and fuel consumption:-

. T Particulérs

Current Year

2021-22

1. Electricity:

Units Purchgsed (KVAH)

(a) puréhaSed: SV ———

106815958

Quantity (lt/rs)

Previous Yearr 7

84739372

Total Cost (Rs) - 84,00,15,057 62,01,58,915
Rate/ unit V 7.8() S ""”"",‘7“3’2’
(b) Own Generation — o -
Through generators:
Umis Produced T 2383602 | 3902411
Units/litter of fuel oil R TTTUase | 393
Cost (Rs)unit B 1181 9.17
R R TTTT T
T 21,55,482 22,61,951
S s
s T o
593098
| Total Cost - 26003594 ©3,35,16,833
i G
i - 314073.25 266766.31
- 40,54,54,910 23,90,17,963
Average rate per MMBTU 1290.96 895.98
- o e R R ,, , 0
Quantity (KWH) 403856
| Total Cost 15,33,103
Average Rate pEIK\NH o o 3.80
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(B) Consumption per unit of production

Particulars Standards (If | 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
any) Current Year Previous Year | Previous
Year

Iron & Steel Products Not Specific 2374 Units per | 2453 Units | 2412 Units
MT of Scrap|per MT of | per MT of
Consumed Scrap Scrap
Consumed Consumed

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

1. The Company has been able to successfully absorbed technology transferred from DMRL &

NMRL (DRDO Labs) for special material used by Indian Navy in ship building program and
fruitful results of this technology absorption are benefitting the company by good order book from
Navy Ship Builders.

The Company is working with ARDE, Pune for development of Air Drooping Bomb, which is in
advance stage of manufacturing. This will benefit the Company as well as the Country as an Import
substitution.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years): NIL

Your Company is engaged in Research & Development activities and incurred Rs.
161,26,586/- towards Capital expenditure and Rs. 516,96,525/- towards Revenue
expenditure during the year.

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of export opportunities based on economic
considerations. During the year, the Company has exports (FOB value) worth Rs.38934.11 Lakhs
against Rs.23092.42 Lakhs in the previous year. The total inflow in this year is Rs. Rs.36485.95 Lakhs
against Rs.21568.46 Lakhs in the previous year, while total outflow in this year is Rs. 14418.19 Lakhs
against Rs.8199.75 Lakhs in the previous year.
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‘Annexure B’ to Directors’ Report

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Unsecured loan from related parties: NIL

¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value,
if any: NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NIL
f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL
g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188: N.A

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:
1. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship:

Mr. SR. Gupta, Mr. M.K. Gupta, Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Mr. Samir Gupta, Mrs. Mahima Gupta
& Mr. Abhishek Gupta, Directors & their Relatives

b) Nature of transaction: Financial Arrangement in the form of Unsecured Loan from related
parties i.e. unsecured Loan

¢) Duration of transaction: coincidental with Bank Loan Agreements

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: unsecured loan is repayable on
demand and carries interest @ 8.35% p.a. for first half & 7.75% p.a. for second half, monetary
value of the transaction is as following:

M.K.Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.134,50,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.6,11,406/-

Samir Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.112,25,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.40,51,286/-

Abhishek Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.60,15,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.28.00,983/-
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Rekha Gupta: Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.29,61,566/-
Director Sitting Fee Rs.11,000/-

Mahima Gupta Director Sitting Fee Rs.11,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.3,42,669/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A.
2. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Star Wire (India) Engineering Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Machining of castings
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,

Rs. 6,27,35,704/- (Machining Charges)
-Rs.5,12,77,900/-  (Sale of Goods)

Rs.60,96,785/- (Interest on Advances)
- Rs.7,46,932/-: (Purchase of Goods)
Rs.4,95,000/- (Job Work Charges Received)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: 8,34,40,113/-
3. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Abhishek Gupta
b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
If any: Annual Rent of Rs.9, 60,000/- for Registered Office of the Company

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on : 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

4. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Sita Ram Mohinder Kumar Gupta HUF
b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
if any: Annual Rent of Rs.9,00,000/- for godown of the Company

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on : 07.06.2021

fy Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
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a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Supreme Commercial Enterprises Ltd.
b) Nature of transaction: Human Resource services
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.334,89,177/- (Human Resource
services) Rs.1,20,000/- (Rent for premises used for sheds/manufacturing facility of the
Company)
e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on : 07.06.2021
6. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Juhi Leasing & Finance Ltd.
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.2,04,000/-
e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: : 07.06.2021
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
7. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Saraswati Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,08,000/-
e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: : 07.06.2021
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
8. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Shree Radha Krishna Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,86,000/-
f) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

9. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Brijeshwari Dharmarth Sansthan

b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
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¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.2,20,000/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mahawar Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,74,400/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Interglobal Steels Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.4,00,000/-

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Kuber Dharmarth Sansthan
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.9800/-

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: : 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mahawar Dharmarth Sansthan
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

g) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1 14,000/~

h) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021
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Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Supersigma Alloys & Forggings Private
Limited

b) Nature of transaction: Purchase

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.520.95.000/-(Purchase of Goods)
e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Nipin Steel Private Limited

b) Nature of transaction: Interest on Unsecured Loan
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.26,204/- (Interest on Unsecured
Loan)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Surendra Brothers Engineers Private
Limited

b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Annual Rent of Rs.96,000/- for
business purpose of the Company

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on : 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Sun Source Leafin Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Interest on Unsecured Loan
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.3.42.530/- (Interest on Unsecured
Loan)
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e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 07.06.2021

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Samir Gupta)

(Mohinder Kumar Gupta)

Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN-00054110 DIN-00054308

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 27.08.2022 Date: 27.08.2022

to Directors’ Report

Annexure C’
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Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

Mr. 8.S. Virdi (COO & CEQ)*

Designation | Remunerati | Nature of | Qualificatio | Date  of Age/ Last % of | Whether
on Received | employment | n & | commence | DOB employment | equity such
Experience | ment of shares employee is
employme held relative  of
nt any Director
or manager
Chief 96,13,487.00 | Permanent B.Tech. 12-08-2013 10 years in | Nil No
Operating (Met.), Jindal
Officer M.B.A stainless
Steel
Exp. - 38 3 years in
Years Star Wire
3 years in
Dansteel
Engg
1 year in Star
Wire
I year in
Steel  Stripl
year in W.M.
Forge
7 years in
Oswal Steel
3 year in
HM.T
I year in

Escorts Ltd
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Company Secretaries

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T March 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
(CIN: U27109HR1963PLC105338)
21/4, Mathura Road Ballabgarh,
Faridabad, Haryana-121004

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate practices by STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED (hereinafter called the

Compuany). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31% March, 2022 generally complied with statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minufe books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(1) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye laws framed there under;
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made tf qe
to the extent of the Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

Commercial Borrowings;

© 403, Nirmal Tower, 26, Barakhamba Road, B o+91-11-40366403, 23752129 saurabhfcs@gmail. dom
Connaught Place, New Delhi- 110001 @ 9811365004 @ www.sacchambers.com
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(vi)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Acty-
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;{Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period}
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period}
The Securities and Fxchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;{Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; ;(Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)
The Securities and Fxchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;(Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

The company has complied with other Laws as applicable to the Industry as per the

undertaking given by the company:

1. Factories Act, 1948

2. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

3, The Pavment of Wages Act, 1936

4. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

5. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948

6. The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

7. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

8. The Contract Le‘xi}()u{l {(Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970

9. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

10. The Chitd Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) Act, 1986

11. The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946

12, “i”i’w Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923
13. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
14, Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution} Act, 1974

15. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution} Act, 1951




16. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

17. Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules,
2008
18. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2003
19. The Industries (Development & Regulations) Act, 1951
20. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009
21. Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923
22. Indian Contract Act, 1872
23. Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.
In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the company, we have relied on information/data

provided by the Company during the course of audit and reporting is limited to that extent,

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

During the year, Mrs. Sugandha Saigal (DIN: 08648443) was appointed as an Independent Director of
the company w.e.f 26" April, 2021 and has been resigned onl8th January, 2022,

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting,.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views were not required to be
captured and as recorded as part of the minutes, as there were no such instance.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the following event has occurred which had a major

bearing on the Company’s Affair in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards,

etc,




»  During the financial year, the companymadeVariation in terms and conditions of 4% Non-
Cumulative Redeesmable Preference Shares by reducing rate of Dividend from 4% to 1% for Series-

I w.ef 01042021

Place: New Delhi ?%égzmtum:‘f;

Dyate of UDIN: 01/087 2022 Saurabh Agrawal

UDINFOOB430D000887 740 Saurabh Agrawal & Co.

Company becretarieos
FCS Nos 3430
P No.: 4868

2770872022

Ulate of Signing

T'his report is to be read with our letter of sven date which s annexed as ANNEXURE A" and forms

an integral part of this report.



STAR WIRE (IND1A) LIMITED
(CIN: UZFTOOHR1903PLOTE5338)
2174, Mathura Road Ballabgarh,

Faridabad, Harvana-121004

ANNEXURE A7

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial vear 31st March, 2022 is to be read along with this letter.

Place: Mew Delhu

iy
U

»

3

Led

Masnagement Responsibility

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secrefarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively;

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is e express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respuct to secretarial compliances

et

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s managem
ts adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opiniow;

es as were appropriate to obiain reasonable

We have followed the audit practices and proc

rids, The verification was

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial rec
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe

T
R340

that the procvesses and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opiy
Wherever required we have obtained the management's representation about the Compliance

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etg;

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

emont bas conducted the affalrs of

5,

»  Disclaimer

o,
nor of the efficacy or effectivencss with which the ma
the Company;

7. We have not verified the corre

wss and appropriations of finand

accounts of the Company.

gnabure

Saurabh Agrawal
o

Saurabh Agrawal & Cg
Cumpany secretaries
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‘Annexure E’ to Directors’ Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) ACTIVITIES

gn

Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or

programs.
Areas of social development that would include (i) eradicating hunger, poverty and
malnutrition, promoting health care and sanitation and

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company emphasize initiatives
in specific making available safe drinking water, (ii) promoting education, including
special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects; (iii) promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up
homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior
citizens, etc. CSR policy is available on company’s website. (web-
link:http://www.starwire.in/CSRPolicy.pdf)

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the repor’t‘). (N.A)

Composition of the CSR Committee

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:
Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson

Mr. Pankaj Jain, Member

Mr. Abhishek Gupta, Member

Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta, M.D.

Mrs. Rekha Sharma, Secretary

The Committee met 4 (four Times) during the year under review.

Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years

Average net profit: Rs.57,18,00,285/-

Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net profit of the last three financial years)
The Company during the financial year 2021-22 is required to spend Rs.114,36,006/- towards
CSR.
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Particulars

Amount

Average net profit for last three financial years

57,18,00,285

Prescribed CSR expenditure

three financial years

2% of Average net profit for last

Amount CSR to be spent for financial year 114,36,006
Amount CSR spent for financial year 71,66,286.00
Amount spent in local area 71,66,286.00

kg

Amount unspent CSR 280,27,896.17 **
Particulars Amount
Opening Balance 237,58,176.35
(+) Provision for the F.Y 2021-22 114,36,006.00
(+) Reversal of P.Y Expenses 0.00
(-) Expenditure made during F.Y 2021-22 71,66,286.00
Closing Amount to be spent 280,27,896.35

6. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
Total amount spent for the year: Rs.71,66,286.00/-
Amount unspent, if any: Rs.280,27,896.35 /-

Manner in which amount spent/provisioned during the financial year is detailed below:

differently abled and livelithood

Rs. 36,00,000/-

Amount
spent
Amount Spent Cumulative directly
S.NO| CSR Project or Sector in which the project is P Expenditure upto |or
AP . on the Project .
activity identified | covered the reporting through
or programme . .
period implemen
ting
Agency
Old Age Covered under item (iii) in f‘g‘;ggto‘go}fs‘
Home/Dharmshala | schedule VII, Promoting Gender T }
. . spent by way of
equality, empowering women, donation of a Through a
setting up homes and hostels for ) Implemen
j . NIL piece of land for .
women and orphans, setting up . ting
) setting up Old
old age homes, day care centres Agency
e Age Home/
and such other facilities for
T Dharmshala
senior citizens.
2 Rs. 3,14,696/- Directly
Enhancement of (ii) promoting education, (Directly) and
. . . . . ) through
Vocational skills including special education and
. . Rs. Implemen
among women and | employment enhancing vocation | 12,08,744/- 1374659147 | tin
children Promoting | skills especially among children, | Directly during o Aoge ncies
Health care women, elderly, and the pandemic) > ‘
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enhancement (Indirectly)
projects;
Covered under item (1), Rs.

eradicating hunger, poverty and | 20,42,846/-
malnutrition, promoting Health

care including preventive health
care and sanitation and

making available safe drinking

water during Pandemic,

(Indirectly)

Donation to trusts covered for
providing activities under
Schedule VII

4
j

WW\,,,&AM,‘KN&%

P

Through a
Implemen
ting
Agency

Rs. 71,66,286.00 | Rs. 3.31,06.591.47

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) :

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : Not Applicable

o

>; Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : Not Applicable

¢ Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc. : Not Applicable

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including com plete address and
location of the capital asset) : Not Applicable
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8. Reasons for not spending the prescribed CSR‘expenditures:

The company is already engaged in the activities covered under the provisions of CSR directly as well as
through institutions as in the past. To be specific, the company has incurred Rs. 3.14.696.00/- during the year
on the CSR activities directly towards enhancement of vocational skills for inhabitants residing near
manufacturing facilities in the following manner-

» Computer Training center for boys
» Sewing Training center for girls in village
Further, during corona Pandemic company spent Rs. 12,08.744.00/- for distribution of free food items and

. medicine.

Further the company has also taken up a Project for setting up certain Medical Facilities to be in reach of
public at large by donating funds of Rs. 36.00.000/- (During the year) to Shri Jai Pal Sharma Trust and
further committed to support the said trust for development of medical facilities.

The amount of Rs. 20,42.846/- has been donated to various trust carrying on activities falling under Schedule
VI of the Companies Act.

The Company could not spend the funds earmarked for CSR activities as the Project for setting up of' old age
departments/Govt. bodies to the Trust. Moreover, the company has identified few trusts engaged in

promotion of education to support them in their activities and ensure utilization of unspent amount in line
with laid down CSR objectives.

9. Responsibility Statement :

= It is hereby affirmed that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27.08.2022

(Mohinder Kumar Gupta) (Rekha Gupta)
Managing Director Chairman CSR Committee

DIN-00054110 DIN-00054073




PRYD & ASSOCIATES 4831, Govind Lane, Ist Floor
Chartered Accountants 24 Ansari Road, Darya Ganj
New Delhi-110002

PHONE: (011)23258183
P M Mittal
B.Com, FCA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Star Wire (India) Limited

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Star Wire (India) Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Profit and
Loss Statement (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the statement of change in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Gpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cas
flows and change in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principlé

generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specit%




under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.




« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Bvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

- We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

« From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors® report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best  of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;
b, In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have beer;}eg@y@
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those book: S«C N
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C. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Statement (including other
comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Change
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014,

as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2022 on its financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements as
referred to in Note 33 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term
contracts including derivative contracts ; and

(iiiy There was no fund which required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi KS‘L 1
Dated: 27-08-2022 . (P.M.
ODIN 2209456 TARMASE L &IC Membership Number: 09
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“ANNEXURE A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 3 15t March 2022, we report that:
1. Inrespect of its Property, Plant and Equipment:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

b) As explained to us, all the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically
verified by the management in a phased periodical manner, which in our
opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its fixed assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

¢) As per the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of
immovable properties included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in
the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

2. (a) In our opinion, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by
the Management at reasonable intervals and as explained to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in Note no 19 to the standalone financial statements, the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crore’s in the aggregate
from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
The quarterly returns/ statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

3. As informed, the Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly
clauses 3(iii) (a, b & c) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not
applicable to the Company.

4.  Tn our opinion and according to the information & the explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments and provided guarantees and
securities under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company haszn .
accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act am&\
hS




Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2020 (as amended) from the public.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has maintained proper cost records as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to the
manufacturing activities, and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed
cost records have been made and maintained.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Duty of custom, Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
have been regularly deposited during the year by the company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears, as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information & explanations given to us there are certain
disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of disputed
matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under:

Name of| Nature of the| Amou Period to{ Forum where
the statute | Dues nt (Rs. | which the | dispute is
in amount pending
Lacs) relates
Haryana Local Area| 896.44 | Various years | Hon’ble
VAT Act Development (896.4 | from 2004-05| Supreme Court
Tax (LADT) 4) to 2017-18
Income Demand on 69.02 various years | Assstt. / CIT,
Tax Act,|{ additions & | (69.02)| from 2002-03 | CIT(A), ITAT
1961 Interest to 2008-09
Central Excise Duty 08.23 various years | With various
Excise Act, (31.09) | from 1988-89 | appellate
1944 t0 2014-15 authorities &
Hon’ble
Supreme Court
Custom Custom  duty | 192.13 | 2006-07 Dy
Act, 1962 against (177.0 Commissioner
Advance 1))
License

Total Rs 1165.82 Lacs (Rs 1188.68 Lacs)




¢) According to the information & explanations given to us there are no amounts
which are required to be transferred to the investor education and protection fund
in accordance with the relevant provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules thereunder.

8. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 and income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3
(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

9. (a) Based on our verification and according to the information & explanations given
by the management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its
banks.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or Government or any Government authority.

(¢ ) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which the
loans were raised.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the
Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(¢ ) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or persons on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3 (ix) (f) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

10.  (a) During the year the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) hence reporting under
clause (x) (a) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(b)During the year the Company has not made preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (x) (b) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company

11. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the Financial Statements and According to the information and
explanations provided by the management, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the Management.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us.ings 5

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rulel3 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rgl"’ ; K
2014 with the Central Government. {t: aed D




12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

8.

19.

(c) During the year the Company has not received any whistle-blower complaint.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company’s transactions with its related party are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him as referred to Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and hence reporting under clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations provided to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3
(xvi) (¢ ) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) As represented by the management, the Group does not have more than One
Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per the definition of Group
contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the Statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3 (xviii) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the standalone financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on t 5‘503%
. . . e He 1 tqre o i tat NG

date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting 1ts liabilities exist

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one




20.

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 27-08-2022

ODIN ~ 2209Y£¢FALMASE 685

from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act
(the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the
Act.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to
be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of
section 135 of Companies Act.

For PRYD & Associates

Partner



“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure B referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 3 1% March 2022, we report that:

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Star Wire
(India) Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. o
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountantsas.

1a;

Place: New Delhi R \ S
Dated: 27-08-2022 (P.M. Mitlyms®
UDIN- 22094 ¢e 340 MAS 20 S9¢C Membership Number: 094667

Partner
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STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022

{Zin Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars Notes 345t March, 2022 31st March, 2021
|- ASSETS
{1)- Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 51,028.46 45,666.05
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 1 3,4B84.35 4,071.10
(c) Financial Assets -o- -
{i) Investments 2 167.26 131.43
{ii) Loans 3 6.99 14.16
(iiiy Other Financial Assets 4 1.149.24 1,156.70
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 5 718.26 1,266.44
Total Non-Current Assets 56,554.55 52,305.88
(2) - Current Assets
(a) inventories 6 35,519.26 2283576
(b} Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 7 25,636,756 21,121.94
(i Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 39.42 68.87
{iii) Bank Balances Other Than (i) Above 9 653.26 556.29
(iv) Loans 10 19.82 41.30
(v} Other Financial Assets 11 2,329.84 3,020.14
(c) Other Current Assets 12 2,252,289 1,850.79
Total Current Assets 66,450.64 49,595.09
Total Assets 1,23,005.19 1,01,900.96
I - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 2,790.48 2,790.48
(b} Other Equity 14 52,382.43 43,967.75
Total Equity 55172.91 46,758.23
Liabilities
(1)- Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 16,168.25 15,324.33
(b) Provisions 18 927.73 §14.91
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 5,256.91 4,813.04
{d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 18 790.04 764.79
Total Non-Current Liahilities 23,142.93 21,717.06
(2)- Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 30,804.40 22,487.19
ii) Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises 20 239.97 -
Cther than Micro and Small Enterprises 9,040.36 7,695.24
(i) Other Financial Liabiliies 21 2,035.19 1,183.31
(b) Other Current Liabilities 22 1,556.69 1,652.96
{c) Provisions 23 925.88 406.98
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 11 86.85 -
Total Current Liahilities 44,689.35 33,425.67
Total Liabilities 67,832.28 55,142.73
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,23,005.19 1,01,900.96
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements o0 34

As per our Report of even date: For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Subash Singh Virdi} \\_F——\—“-\
For PRYD & Associates Executive Director -

Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 011626N

y ) (Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
.E\n \,&,\'A_C; Managing Director
«w‘”j‘_“‘“‘ DIN - 00054110
{Binod Kumar Mishra}

Chief Finance Officer

/ /
Partner
Membership No.: 094667 (Rekha Sharmay} (Samir Gupta)
Ptace: New Delhi Jt.GM Legal & Company Secretary ‘Whole Time Director

Date: 27", August 2022 M No: FCS 6428 DIN - 00054308



STAR WIRE {iND1A) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315t MARCH, 2022

{¥ in Lakhs)

A Equity Share Capital
1) Current Reporting Period
ch i Equi Restated balance at [Changes in Balance at the
Batanco at the beginning of the currant reporting Sh:l:eggsn I::lalqdl:?m the baginning of the equity share end of the
period ror eriz d errors cursent reposting capltatduring  |curcent reporting
priar g petod the currant year |period
2790.48 0.c0 Q900 0.00, 2790.48
(2) Pravious Raporting Perlod
Changes in
Restated balance at Balance attho
Balance at the begihning of the previeus 5?1:?:?:? "';!E::i? the beginning of the Bql::h;:h:.m end of the
reporting pericd pl e 1o previous reporting capia u ng previous
prler petiod ertors ihe previous
period reporting period
Year
2790.48 0.00 G.00 .00 2750.48
B. Other Equity (Refor Note14}
Reserves and Surplus Honay
Other recelved

i Botatnned tepatl Tota

Particulars Capital Reserve | Sectitles Premium RGE"EH'E Eaml Re Comprehensive | agalnst share otal
eserves amings b Income warrants

Ealance al the April,1,2020 50,00 722488 47583 29178.29 Bi7.42 7243 0.00 3747398
Changes in accounting policy or prior
eriod errors 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0¢ 0.00 £.00 0.00
Restated halance at the April,1,2020 5000 722488 47583 29178.29 617.42 -T2.43 4.c0 37473.98
Profitf{Loss) for the year 0.0 0.00 0.0G 6459.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 649817
Other Comprehansiva Incomai{-Expenses) for the 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 540 0.00 540
year (Mot of Tax) - g . . 8 X | y
Total Comprehengive Incame 50,00 722488 475,83 3567746 617.42 -77.83 0.0% 43961.75
Cividends .60 0.00 0.00 000 G.00 0.00 0.00 0.0¢
Transfer to retalned eamings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00
Any ather change c.00 G00 0.00 0.0¢ 0.00 0.00 .00 ¢.00
Balance as at March,31,2021 50.00 7224.88 475,83 35677,46 617.42 -17.83 0.00 43967.75
Balance al lhe April,,2021 50,00 7224.88 475.83 3567746 §17.42 -71.83 0.00 43967.75
Changes in accounting policy of pricr 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.60 0.00 0.00 .00
period errors, - - i - i ' . .
Restated balance at the April,1,2021 50.00 7224.88 475.83 3I5677.46 61742 7783 4,00 4396775
Profiv{loss) for the year .00 0,00 G,00 8324,95 0.00 0.00 0.00 832495
Qther Comprehensive Income/(-Expenses) for the 0.00 6.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 89.72 6.00 89.72
vear (Net of Tax} - . - 8 A A .S X
Total Comprehensive Income for the cument year 50.00 T224.88 475.83 4400244 617,42 11.89 .00 5238243
Dividends 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 .00 Q.00 0.00 0.00
Transfar 1o retaingd gamings 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0¢
Any clher change 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,60 0,00 0.00 0.00
Balance as at March,31,2022 50.00 T224.88 47583 44002.41 617.42 11.89 4.00 52382.43

/) A / f

As per our Repert of even dale:

Far and on behalf of lhe Board of Directors
For PRYD & Asgociates
Chartered Accounlants Executive Director

Reglstration No.: 011628N; - {Mohinder Kumar Gupta}
/—,\{\I £ ,5“\ -—%4 W Managing Directer
X et

(Bined Kumar Mishra) -—— =
Chief Finance Cfficer

Coy, 2t

%
3
£
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s Lhovies
(CAP, M, Mittat}
Parlner {Rekha Sharma)
Membership No.: 094567 J.GM Legal & Company Secrelary {Samir Gupta}
Place: New Dethi M No: FCS 6428 Whole Time Director

Date: 27th, August 2022 DIN - 00054308




STATEMENT OF PROFIT & 1 0SS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED _31st MARCH, 2022

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

X in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Notes ended ended
March-22 March-21
. Revenue From Operations 24 82,023.30 58,383.51
It Other income 25 2,119.81 1,049.91
Il Total Income (1+1) 84,143.11 59,433.42
IV Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 27 29,998.41 19,612.28
Purchases of Stock-In-Trade 28 1,435.67 -
Change In Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress
and Stock-in-Trade 29 {9,490.35) {1,883.08)
Employee Benefits Expense 30 5,188.72 3,778.60
Financial Costs 31 2,301.88 2.040.43
Depreciation And Amortization Expense 2,137.04 2,026.31
Other Expenses:-
{1} Manufacturiisg Expenses 32.a 34,673.49 21,746,685
{li) Administeative Expenses 32.b 2,913.24 2,027.22
{lie) Selling & Distribution Expenses 32c 3,559.42 t,411.60
Total Expenses (IV) 72,717.51 50,760.01
V  Profit/ {L.oss) before Exceptional items and Tax (llI-IV) 11,425.60 8,673.41
VI Exceptional ltems - :
VIl Profit! {Loss) before Tax (V-V1) 11,425.60 8,673.41
Vit Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 17 2,565.64 1,726.94
(2) Deferred Tax 17 413.69 447.30
(3) Income Tax Expenses of Previous F.Y. 131.32 -
3,100.65 2,174.24
IX Profit! {Loss} for the Period frem Continuing Operations (VIL-VIIl) 8,324.95 6,499,17
X Profit{{Loss) for the Period {IX+XIl) 8,324 .95 §,499.17
X! Other Comprehensive Income 26
(i} tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 119.20 {7.29)
(i) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss {30.18} 1.82
89.72 (5.40)
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (X+XI) 8,414.68 6,493.77
Xl Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value of Rs. 1 each)
1) Basic (Rs.) 2.93 233
2} Diluted {Rs.} 298 2.33
XV Earnings per Equity Share (for Discontinuing & Continuing operations}
1} Basic {Rs.) 2.98 2.33
2) Dituted (Rs.) 2.98 233
“Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 279047500 279047500

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements Py 1to 34

As per our Report of even date:

For PRYD & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 011626N

Subash Singh Vifdi)
Executive Director

EANYE

{Binod Kumar Mishira) *
Chief Finance Officer

A

{Rekha Sharma)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\\>.._,_M_

{Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
Managing Director

DIN - 00054110

T

2

(Samir Gupta)
Whole Time Director
DIN - 00054308

Place: New Dethi
Date: 27th,August 2022

Jt.GM Legal & Company Secretary
M No: FCS 6428



STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

(¥ in Lakhs)
\ For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars
March-22 March-21
Cash Flow Statement:
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 11,425.60 B,673.41
Adjusted for:
{Profit) / Loss on Sale / Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment {Net) 19.73 (413,43)
Depreciation 2,137.04 2,026.31
interest Income (127.57) (12194}
Finance Costs 2,301.88 2,040.43
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 15,756.69 12,204.77
Adjusted for:
(Increase} ! Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable (4,514,81) (2,040.96)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 516.68 388.04
Increase/ {Decrease) in other liabilities (71.01) 85.25
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 715.79 77.66
{Increase) f Decrease in Inventoties (12,683.50}) {4,966.50)
Decrease/ {Increase) in Loans 28.65 1,060.24
Decrease/ {Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets 706.14 (2,101.75)
Decrease/ {Increase) in Other Current Assets (301.50) (659.63)
(Increase} / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 41.92 {49.83)
Decrease/ (Increase} in Qther Non-Current Financial Assets 7.46 (1,045.41})
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 1,585.09 3,088.48
Net Working Capital Changes (13,969.09) (6,154.42)
Cash Generated from Operations 1,787.60 6,050,35
Income Tax Paid 2,702.81 1,701.69
Net Cash Flow from / {Used in} Operating Activities (4): (915,20} 4,348.66
B  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets (7,031.96) (2,572.29)
Capital Advance/Capital Creditors {Net) 928,32 {913.33)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 119.26 58.98
{Profit} / Loss on Sale / Discard of Property, Plant and Eguipment {Net) {19.73} 413.43
Bank balance other than Cash & Cash Equivalents {96.97) (201.88)
Interest Income 127.57 121,94
Net Cash Flow fram / (Used in) Investing Activities (B): (5,973.51) (3,093.15)
C  Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Long-Term borrowings (Net) 843,93 (4,163.44)
Proceeds from Short-Term borrowings {Net) 8317.21 4,867.66
Interest Paid (2,301.88) (2,040.43)
Net Cash Flow from / (Used in} Financing Activities (C}: 6,859.26 {1,336.21)
Net Increase / (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+GC) (29.45) (80.70)
Cash and Cash Equivalenis at the beginning of the Year 68.87 149,57
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year* 39.42 68.87
* Comprises:
Cash on Hand 33.64 18.40
Balances with Banks
(i) [n Current Accounts 5.69 48.34
(i} In EEFC Accounts 0.09 0.13
39.42 68.87

Notes:
These earmarked account balances with banks can be gfilised only for
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

t?e'}ieciﬁc identified purposes.

As per our Report of even date:

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 011626N

{Subash Singh

Executive Difgctor

For and con behalf of the Board of Directors

{Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
Managing Director

[
(CAP. M. Mittal)
Partner s
Membership No.: 094667 ©»
Place: New Delhi o
Date: 27th,August 2022

T e

(Binod Kumar Mishra) %
Chief Finance Officer

d

(R&Kha Sharma)
Jt.GM Legal & Company Secretary
M No: FCS 6428

DIN - 00054110

(Samir Gupta)

Whole Time Director

DIN - 06054308



STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022:

A Corporate information

Star Wire (India} Limited, originally incorporated in 1963 was taken over by present management in 1981 under an auction conducted by Hon"
Delhi High Court. It is engaged in the manufacturing of critical and cutting edge metallurgical components with applications in the aerospace,
defense, automotive and power sectors. It is a leading Engineering company that is engaged in the manufacturing of Alloy Steels, Stainless
Steel and Special Steels for diversified engineering application in shape of castings, forging and rolled products.

Name: Star Wire (India) Limited (SWIL.)

Date of Incorporation : July 4, 1963

Corporate Identity Number {CIN) issued by MCA: U27108HR1363PLC105338

Constitution: Limited Company

Industry: Engineering / Mini Steel Plant

Registered & Corporate Office:-

Corporate Office ~ 35, Link Road, 2nd Floor, Lajpat Nagar-lil,New Delhi-110024

Registered Office -- 21/4, Mathura Road, Ballabgarh-121004, Faridabad, Haryana

Project sites

Plant [

2114, Mile Stone, Mathura Road, Ballabgarh,

Faridabad, {(Haryana)

Plant l:

Village Chhainsa, Ballabgarh, Faridabad, (Haryana)

B Significant accounting policies:

B.1

B.2
{a)

(a}

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the histerical cost basis except for certain Fixed Assets which are carried at revalued
amounts and certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in
Indian Rupees (*), which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs except when otherwise indicated

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), including the rules
notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, amended fram time to time,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current and Non-Current Claslfication

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balange Sheet based on Current/ NonCurrent classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it is —

- Expected lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in ncimal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to selfle atiability for at least twelve months after the reporting
pariod.

All other assets are ¢lassified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- |t is expected to be setfled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

-There is no unconditional right to defer the setfiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities.

Property, Plant and Egquipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and include amounts added on
revaluation, less accumutated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost
dirgctly attributable to bringing the asset fo ils working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets,

Subsequent cosis are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM). Depreciation is provided based on useful lite of the
assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets, where useful life is different than
those prescribed in Schedule Ii;

Particular Depreciation
Property, Plant and Equipment Qver its useful fife considered as 30 years as technically assessed
Iron & Steel Industries - Rolling Mili Roils Qver its useful life considered as one year as technically assessed

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospeclively, if appropriate. For new projects, direct expenses and direct overheads including interast on Borrowed funds for the
acquisition of Assets are capitalized tifll the assets are ready for intended use.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its propesty, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP canrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transifion to Ind AS e, April 01, 2018,

-




STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022:

&)

{c)

{d)

(e}

(g}

(R}

®

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
amortisation/depletion and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the Intangible Assets.

intangible assets which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed as 'Intangible assets under development'.

A summary of amortisation / depletion policies applied te the Company’s Intangible Assets to the extent of depreciable amount is as follows:

Particular Amortisation / Depletion
Computer Software Over a period of 5 years
Others Over the period of agreement of right to use

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its
deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2016.

Research and Development Expenses:

As a matter of policy, Revenue expenditure on research & development is charged to the Profit and Loss Statemen! under the natural head of
account in the year in which it is incurred and Capital expenditure on research & development is accounted for as the norrnal expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash an hand, cash at banks, short-term deposits and short-term, highly liquid investrments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Finance Cost:

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising frem foreign curency borrowings to the extant they are regarded as an adjusiment to the
interest cost. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of gualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asse! is one that necessarily takes substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are charged ta the Profit and Loss Statement in the period in which they are incurred,

Inventories:

ltems of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories
compyrises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in
bringing them to their respective present location and candition.

Cost of finished goods, work-in-progress, raw materials, stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on
Stores and spare parts are carried at cost. Necessary provision is made and charged to revenue in case of identified obsolete and non-moving
items.

Cost of raw materials, Components, stores and spares, trading and other products are determined on weighted average method.

Employee Benefits:

Shertterm employee bencfits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit and Loss Statement of the year in which
the related service is rendered.

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Profit and L.oss Statement for the year in which
the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial
valuation techniques. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur in Other Comprehensive Income The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of
service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service
as per the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972,

The Provisions towards post-retirement benefits to employees / legal heirs of the deceased employees under the Employees’ Family Benefit
Scheme, are computed at the time of payment on actual basis, based on Company’s Pelicies.

Tax Expenses:

The 1ax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to
1) Current Tax: Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the Income Tax
autherities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the Balance sheet date,

ii) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temparary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities and assels are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seitled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws) that have

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional cusrency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary lems are recognised in Statermnent of Profit and Loss except to the extent of
exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable 1o

the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets which are capitalised as cost of assets.

MNon-monetary items thatl are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on franstation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the charge in fair value of the item {i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in

e




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022:

]

(k)

®

{m

{n

1G]

(P}

{a

{n

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement
with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed.

Revenue from operations is measured at the fair vakue of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Intezest Income from a Financial Assels is recognised using effective interest rate method.
Financia! Instruments:
{a) Financial Assets:
All Financial Assets are recognized at falr value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of Financial
Assets, which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are adjusted to the fair value on iniial recognition. Purchase and sale of
Financial Assels are recognised using trade date accounting.
Investments in unquoted & quoted equity
Non Cusrent investments in equity shares, quoted & unquoted, ase stated at market & book value respectively.
{b} Financlal Liabilities:
Alj Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly atiributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Less as finance cost. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
Derivative Financiat Instruments
The Company uses derivative financiat instruments like forwards & options to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are afso
subsequently measured at fair value as on reporting date. Any gains or losses on the re-measurement/ Settlement of the transaction on
Derivatives are carried as Financial Assets when the fair value is positive and as Financial Liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Earnings per Share: .
The earnings considered in ascertalning the Company's Earnings per Share {EPS) comprise the net profit after tax. The number of shares
used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Provisions & Contingent Liabilltles:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {{egal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and 2 reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
Conlingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of pessible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be confirmed by the
accurrence or non occurrence of ore or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present
abligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where 2 reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets or group of Assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an
asset of CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Use of Estimates:
The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based
on historical experience and varicus other assumptions and factors {including expectations of future events) that the Company believes o be
reascnable under the existing circumstances, Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known/ materialised,
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide
additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
Government Grants:
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company witl comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.
Government granis are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate,
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.
Classification of Assets and Liahilities:
Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013 requires assets and liabiities to be classified as either Current or Non-current,
!, An asset shalil be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;
(i) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's narmal operating cycle;
(1) It is held primatily for the purpose of being iraded;
(iii} It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
(iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabllity for at [east twelve months after the
All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.
I, A liabllity shall be classified as current when It satisfies any of the following criteria:
{i} It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
{ii} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;
(it} It is due to be setfled within twelve months after the reporiing date; or
(iv} The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the fiability for at teast twelve months after the reporting date.
All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

b
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STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2622;

C Critical Accounting Judgments And Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcemes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in next financiai years.

{a) Depreciation / Amortisation and useful lives of Property Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets:

{b

{c

(d

(e

-

)

)

Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annuelly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation / amertisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the
Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation
for future pericds is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Recoverabiiity of Trade Receivables:

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determiring whether a provision against those
receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments
and any possibie actlons that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions:

Provisions and fiabilities are recognized In the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outfiow of funds resulfing from past
operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and guantification of the liabitity
requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The camrying amounts of provisions
and liabiliies are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Impalrment of Non-Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the
Campany estimates the asset’'s recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units
(CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, It is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs o the impairment caleulation, based on Company's past history,
existing market conditions as welf as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

B First Time adoption of Ind AS
The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being restated. On assessment of estimates and measurement
of financial assets made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no nacessity {o revise such
estimates and measurement of financiat assets under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those eslimates and measurement of
financial assets.

The figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and reclassified wherever raguired to comply with the requirement of ind AS and
Schedule Il

“\:V/




STZEL'BY T8'ZIS'YS 09'TY6's oL Ly POLET'Z ST'ESB'L OF 550'YS - - 52'61T 97'¢86°9 Ov'065°LS {8) o3 {e] |r30L
- - - - - - - - - - - - sjue|d faieag ueL JOYI0 51assy [enFojo)g (3]
- - - - - - - - - - - - uzwde|pasp Sopun s1asse ajqiduet) (§)
- - < - = - - - - - - - stasse ajqidueiu] 13Y10 (3)
- - - - - - - - - - - - lipond {p)
- - - - - - B - - - - - Auadotd Ul ualiisanu; {7)
oT'TL0'Y SE'VBY'E - - - - SEpEr'E - - - {54°585) 0T TL0Y 5524301d-Ut-41050 |2UdRD (9]
£0'999'51 9b'BZ0'IS 03ev6’s [y COLET'L S2'E58°2 90'TL6'09 - - 9TETT 0TS IE'615ES {e} jeyol
By T [x4] 96'6T7 " [44:) PLPL ET'6E - - - = £2'6E S688'TT J3YUBY 7R YINLL
10 110 LG " E0°0 110 5T'0 - - - * S7Q 2605°6 EIEs]
TZ'967 80°I8C 0E" 161 52'Gk (414 £4'88T BE'ELY - - 08'ETT T 00T 86'¥8E Se88'T1 32AY3A
BE'EY 9L'8t TL4S - [494 6505 L6'E6 - - - M LG'E6 $605°G R
0£°95Z 65°ZET BO'TLE - £e'L8T 98'P8L £9'v0T°T - - - ZT'E9 95 TH0'T %00°S6 SI10Y I 2ulijoy
0£'S 'S [45 4 - £9'0 SEE 50'6 - - - - S0°6 %6GL'Y Aajjol] 7§ BURL)
¥1'6 66'8T L0E - 0T - 20'0Z - - - 60T ' 36052 PINON [ D
0T'E 4 - - - - 0T'E - - - - 0Z'E 5L uone|eIsy se
SELTE 86'ETT ED'ETY - 96°8ET L0VviT T0°LE9 - - - £5'5E SP°3109 %49'TE 24EMYOS 7R JaIndwed
SB'OL BE'&6% £5'551 't Ga'vT EbTEL 60T - - ab's 86’8 B8'E0T 200'61 swenbz 8240
95 LIT S0'86 BP9TL * 9E'TL E156 £5'F1T - - - SET L ER 4% %05°6 uofie)|essuy a10313
SYECT'YE ED'STO'RE Y5 LLED - T6'66E'T LB L9'28E'Sk - - - 0£'S87'9 L2 201°6E SLT'E AaulydE 3 Jueld
- - M - - - - - - 00T 0oz - HO0'SE Bulp|Ing AleJotia),
25°9L0'2 TY'BEL'L 65°220°T - 66'10€ 09'0ZE'T TZ'Z9ES - - - 80'5596 €T'/6E8 WLL'E duipjing Aojzes
LL6 [ 9T'T - 810 86'0 5408 - - - M §L'0T 96851 Bupling 22140
BE'SOY'E BE'SDY'E - - - - SE'SOV'E - - - - 8E'SOF'E - puej
3uawEinb3 pue Jue|d ‘Alaadosg (e}
T £T [43 1t 0t [ g L k) < v £ z 1
SUDBUIGIIOD
2ozl tE {suononpap) FTOTHO'E0 | ZZOTEDTEIESY HoREnIEAS sgau|snYg Auawsnipy | sjuswysnlpy | TZOZ'FOT0 1R SY voRezlouy/
TZOZ'EDTEILSY | ZZOZ'EO'TEIESY Je sy i aeak oy aog e 5y Supsop o3 anp aduels yanoay 7 wopangag / u_._o;.E.u_n Supado uolepasdag e
swaunsnlpy 10 JuRowy suopsIAbaY ’ o8y v
¥30|8 39N uopia[dag pue uonesitowny fuoizenaadag WI0[E $5040

{sueT i)

INIWAOT1IAIC HIANN SLI55Y JT9IDNVANS ONY SLISSY II8IDNVLNG ‘S53HO0HA-NI-NUOM TYLI4YI “INIWLIND3 ONY INV1d ‘AlY3d0ld

i 230N

GALIAN (VIONIT HIM UVLS

ZZ0T ‘YMEIN I5TE PApUD 1234 313 10 SJUBWIDLRIS |BIDUBUL] 34} 03 SFION




Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31st,2022

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

{Z in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

As at
31st March, 2021

Note - 2: Investments - Mon-Current
INVESTMENTS, AT FVTOCH
«In Fully Paid Equity Shares:
Quoted:
24500 Shares of ¥ 2/- each in Supreme Commercial
Enterprises Ltd, Delhi (FMV @ Rs.266.57 per share)
500 Shares of ¥ 10/~ each in Auto Pins {I) Ltd, Delhi (FMV
@ Rs.80 per share)
Unquoted:
30000 Shares of ¥ 2/~ each in Eagle international Ltd, Delhi
(FMV @ Rs.23.67 per share)
24000 Shares of ¥ 2/- each in Juhi Leasing & Finance Ltd,
Delhi (FMV @ Rs.10.02 per share)
72000 Shares of T 10/- each al a premium of Rs 30/- in Star
Wire (1) Engineering Ltd, Delhi (FMV @ Rs.120.478 per
4400 Shares of ¥ 10/- each in Star Wire () Engineering Ltd,
Delhi (FMV @ Rs.120.478 per share)

Note - 3: Non-Current Loans {Unsecured and Considered Good}
Loans to Employees

Note - 4: Other Non-Current Financial Assets (Unsecured and Considered Good)

Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity
Security and Other Deposits

Note - 5: Other Non-Current Assets {Unsecured and Considered Good)
Capital Advances to other than Related Parlies
Prepaid Expenses

Note - &: Inventories

Raw Materials

Work-in-Progress

Good in-Transit

Finished goods {Including Goods Lying in Godowns Quiside India)
Stores and Spares

-

65.31 65.31
0.40 0.05
7.10 3.59

240 244
86.74 56.58
5.30 3.46
167.26 131.43
6.99 14.16

6.99 14.16
92,06 12441
1,057.18 1.035.28
1,149.24 1,156.70
710.34 1,216.60

- 7.91 49.83
718.26 1,266.44
8,223.89 5.878.07
19,856.32 11,009.97
- 58.28
4,163.26 3519.26
3,275.79 2,370.19
35,519.26 22,835.76




Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 315t,2022

STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

{Tin Lakhs}
As at Asat
Particulars
31st March, 2022 Fist March, 2021
Note - 7: Trade Receivablos {Unsecured and Considered Good)
Qutslanding for a period ling six months 2912375 2,186.68
Others 22,724.00 18,935.26
25,636.75 21,121.94
Note: Trade receivables includp debts due from:
Privale companies in which any director Is a director or member 938.54 909.43
838.54 969,43
Trade Recelvables ageing schedule
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Parficulars Total
Less than 6 months | & manths -1 yoar 12 23 More than
years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
_cansidered good 23,783.50 346.83 202,21 176.62 112.28 24,621.44
(4} Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have signilicant increase in credit - - - - . -
risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired " - " - - -
i Disputed Trade Recai
(c';?‘side'fg: ;md rada Recoivablas- . - - 208,22 667.00 1,01531
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which
have significant increase in credit risk - " - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Racelvables — credit
impaired b h N " - "
Note - 8: Cash and Cash Equivalents
{i) Cash & Bank balances:
Cash on Hand 33.64 19.40
Batances with Banks
(i) In Current Accounts 5,69 49.34
{if) In EEFC Accounis 0.09 0,13
39.42 68.87
Naote - 8:Bank balanges cthor than Note - 8 above
tn Earmarked Accounts
{i) In Fixed Deposit Accounts 451.67 397.80
{ii) Unpaid CSR Account 201.58 158.39
653.26 556,29

{i) The balances are denominated and held in indian rupees.
{li) Earmarked balances with bank reprasents balances held for unpaid dividends,unpaid CSR and masgin money against Issus of bank guarantees & letter of credils.
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Noies to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31st,2022

STAR WIRE {INDIA} LIMITED

(€ in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2022 Jtst March, 2024
Note - 10: Loans - Current {Unsecured and Conslidered Good)
Loans and Advances to Employees 19.82 41.30
—— 287
Hote - 11: Other Financial Assets - Gurrent
interest Accrued on Deposits 3.55 -
Balances with Government Authoritios**
{i} Goods & Service Tax Receivabla +226.70 1,694.86
{if) VAT Cradit Receivable 5.23 §.08
(iii) Duty Draw Back Credit Recaivable 299,34 763.55
{iv) Advance tncome Tax (Ne! of Provisions) Paid in Respect of Earlier Years 410.8% 481.89
{v) Derivativa Forward Contract 3B84.13 -
2,329.84 2,946.36
(vi) Advance Incoma Tax Paid (including TDS & TCS) 2,468.78 1,800.71
Less:« Income Tax Liability 2 555.64 1.726.04
Net Income Tax Refundablef (Payable) {86.85} 73.77
_2,242.98 3,020.14
2" None of the above amount are disputed
Advance Income Tax {Net of Provision)
Al Start of Year 555,67 507.14
Charge for the Year - Current Tax 255564 1,726,.94
Tax Paid {Net) During the Year 232401 1,775.46
At the End of Year 324.04 687
Note - 12: Other Current, Assets {Iinsecyred and Considered Good
Pregaid Expenses 26,81 2607
Advances to Suppliers
To Relatec Parlies 834.40 779.41
To Other than Related Parlies 1,391.08 1,145.31
2,252.29

(-




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the FInancial Staternents for the period ended March 31512022

{¢in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
315t March, 2022 Mst March, 2021
Nate - 13; Share Capital
(2} Authorised Shase Capital:
29,00.00,000 Equity Shates of & 1/- each 2,508.00 2,900.60
(29,00,00,000) Equity Shares of £ 1. gach)
50,00.000 1% Non Cumuiative Redaomable Prefarence Shira of € 10/ Each* 60C.00 £G0.00
(G} 1% MNon Cumuiaiive Redasmable Prelctence Share of € 10i- Each®
10,00,000 43 Non Cumulativa Rudeemable Fraferance Shere of 2 10 Egch® 106.00
{66,00,606) 4% Non Cumulativo Rudeemaltio Fraforence Sharu of ® 10 Each®
3,500.00 3,500.00

(b} tsswrad, Subseribed & Pald Up Capltak;
279047500 Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each fully paid up 2,790,408 2,790.48
(279047500 Equity Shares of € 1/- pach fulty poid up

2,790,483 2,790.48
P b £ STl
[g) Par Value Per Share
Eguity Shares of ¥ 3/ each fuily paid up
{d) The Reconciliation of the numbaer of Shares Outstanding is set out belaw :
Particulars I Ag at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
| No. of Shares | No. of Bhares
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 27,80,47,500 279047500
Addition / Reduclion during lhe year - -
27,80,47,500 279047500
{e) Tha Rights, Powars and Preferences ralating (o Share Capital and the Qualifications, Limitattons and Reglrictions thereof aro taingd [n the M jum and Arlleles of

Associatlon of the Company. The princlpal rights are as below:
Ordinary Shares of Re 1 each

(8)- In respect of every Crdinary Share {whether fully paid or partly pald), voting right shall be in the same proportion 35 the capital paid up an such Qrdinary Share bears 1o the tolal paid up
Ordinary Capital of the Company.

(i} The dividand proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing Annua! General Meeling, excapt in case of interim dividend.

iii}: In the ovent of liguidation, the sharcholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to receive the r g assets of the Company aker distrit of all preferential amounts, in proporiion to thelr
shareholding.
{f} Shares in respoct of each class of Gompany hold by Holding Comgany or it's ultimate Holding Company
Not Applicabla
{a) Detalls of Shares Held by each Sharsholder Holding mora than 5% shares:
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Class of shares ! Name of shareho!der Number of % held Number of shares o heid
shares held held

Equity Shares with Voting Rights
Maohinder Kumar Gupla 4,20,30,000 15.06% 4,2(,30,000 15.068%
Juhi Leasing & Fingnee Limited 10,50,70,000 37.65% 10,50,70,000 37.65%
Samir Gupta 2.65,18,125 9.50% 2,68,63,126 953%
Abhishek Gupta® 3,36.19.375 12.05% 3.36.19.375 12.05%

Total 20,72,37,500 TA2T% 20,7.‘11&500 74;29'/.

{h) Shares Reserved for Issue under Qptions or Contracts or Commitments
Nil -
{l) Dusing the Last Preceding Five Years, no Shares has boen alloted without payment belng received in cash, no shares alloted by way of bonus shares and thers has been no buy
back of shares

{}) Terms of any securitios convartible Into Equity Shares Issued along with the sarllost date of conversion

(k) Galls unpald-Mil

{I) Forfited Shares-j

{m} Promaters Share Holding

Sharas held by Promoters at the end of the year
5. Ro Pramoter name No. of Shares*® | %of total shares % Changa durlng the year 24-22
Hobinder Kumar Gupla 4,20,30,000 15.06% 0.00%
2 Minal Gupta 3.05,000 0.47% 0.00%
3 Samlr Gupta 2,65.18.125 8.50% -0.12%
4 Juhi Leasing & Finance Limileg 10.50.70, 37.65% 0.00%
5 Abhinandan ¥eafin Private Limlted 1.00,12,500 3.59% G.00%
6 Holiyana Finvest Privatn Limited 66,12,500 2.37% T.00%
Supersigma Alloys & Forpgings
7 Privale Limited 119.70.000 420% 0.24%
[ Nipin Steels Privata Limited $4,31,150 1.95% 0.00%
9 Abhishek Gupta 2,47,37.600 5.86% 0.00%
Y] Rekha Gupta €2,77.700 2.25% -0.13%
Murmet India Private Limited 77.48,000 2.78% U00%
2 Padmanabh Sleel & Trading LLP ,50,000 0.48% 000%
S Tea & Traders LLP 82,000 0.57% 0.00%
4 Polylink Vinimay LLP 50,000 0.48% 0.00%
E Cornflower Vinimay LLP ,50,000 0.45% 0.00%
6 Amls_ha Gupla Partner Bhagwati Steel 55,25,000 1.58% 2.00%
Syndicala
17 Ensol Internationaf LLP 36,150 0.01% 0.00%
18 Inlargiobal Steals Private Limited 41.00,000 $A7% 000%
10 al:flt::;{re {India} Biomass Private 50,35,000 216% 2.00%
20 S_lal_' Wire {India) Electricity Private 12.15,000 G445 0.00%
Limited
Abhishek Gupta & Minal Gupta
2 Koty 88,82,3575 118% 0.00%
Total 27,90,47.500 100.00% 0.00%:




STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED
{€ In Lakhs}
at

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the parfod arded March 34st,2022

Particulars As at As
3st March, 2022 315t March, 2021
. As at Asat
tote 14 Other Equlty 31 March, 2022 3% March, 2621
Capital Reserve 50.00 50,00
General Reserves 475,03 475,83
Revalualion Reserves B817.42 §17.42
Securdties Premium Reserve 7,224.88 7,224,808
Retained Eamings:
As por last Balance Sheat 3567746 29,178.29
Add: Profit for the year 8,324.95 44,0024 6.459.17 35,677.48
Less: Approprialions
Transfer to Revaluation Reserve - -
Transfer to Provisions for CSR - -
Transter lo General Reserve - -
Impact of Ind-AS -
Closing balance
Other Comprehensive Income {OCI:
As per last Balance Sheat (77.83) {72.43) -
Add: Movement In OCI {Net) during the year 89.72 11.89 {5.40) {77.83}
Total 52,382.43 43.967.75

Yote - 15: Borrowlngs
(a) Secured

{I) Term Loans: @

- HOFC Bank Limited 2,213.56 229411
- Axis Bank Limited 3,564.81 4,777.45
- Federal Bank Limited 5,377.21 2/659.02
- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 3.121.10 3.953.61
14,276,568 13,664.19
{i) Vehicle Loans:
- Hdlc Bank Ltd A/c Auto Loan 63.53 -
63.53 -
(b} Unsecured
{l) From Related Partles:
Corporate Loans:
- /s Nipin Steal Pvt Limited 349 3.25
= M/s Sun Source Leafin Pyt Limited 38.88 47.08
Gther than Corporate Loans:
- Shri Abnishek Gupla 382.99
- Shri Mohinder Kumar Gupta 66.50
- Shri Samir Gupla 541,97
- Smt Rekha Gupta 394,51
- 5ml. Mahima Gupta 4585
1,473,9%
(1) 1% Non C lative Red b Sharg of 3 10/~ Each® 254,05
4% Hon $i Rad! F Share ol T 10/ Eath** 100,90
354.05
T AT
Note:@
{i)-Tarm Loans from banks are sacurad by first charge by way of an equitabl rigage of & b ies, both present and future, situated at village Chhainsa,Faridabad admeasuring

31,756 Acres, and a first charge by way of hypothecation of all the Company's movables including machinary, machinery spares, tooks and accessorias, present and future, and by second pari
passu charge by way of hypothecation of present and fulure stock of raw malerials, goods in process, finished and manufactured goods logether with components, spares and Book-Debls /
Receivables. Term Loans are als¢ secured by the parsonal guarantees of Shrit K Gupta, Shri Samir Gupta ang Shri Abhishek Gupta, Directors of the Company. Term Loan from Federal Bank
is further secured by first charge on Land at Tehsil Ballabgarh, village Chhainsa,Faridabag admeasuring 21.62 Acres,

(i} During Lhe year Company has iniliated a new capex of Rs 10000 Lacs for praject expansion and purchase of machineries and same hag been financed by HOFC Bank in the ralio of 75:25.
The said term loan of Rs 7500 Lacs as sanclioned by HDFC Bank vide it's lotter no CAMO1 2608210077 dated Nov-23, 2021 Is at par with the existing term loans, howaver, the security creation
i respect of the same s yel to be completed. Tha said terr loan has 2 years of moralorium period and there after payable in 24 equal quaretly Instalments

{ii}- Thae ongoing capex of Rs 7342 Lacs financed by Federal Bank hag shuolup by Rs 2088 Lacs due to addition of some naw projecis/machineries and such addilienal machinery are financed
by Federal Bank by way of section of new tern loan of Hs 1600 Lacs vide their letter no CIDIFRD/SWILIO2I21 dated September 21,2021, The secyrily for the new loan Is at par with the
exisling term loan of Federat Bark, The terms and condilions of new term loan of Rs 1600 Lacs are co-terminus wilh ihe exisling term loan of Federa) Bank and payable in 24 equal guartedy
instaiments,

{iv}- All the procoeds from tetm loans has been utlised for the purpose for which lhese are sanclioned,

* The permission of NCLT has been obiained tegarding re-issue of Preference Shares on same terms & condilions for 10 years i.e. the same will be redeemed not later than Aug,2030

** These Preferenco shares are to be redeamad on or bafore 10th February, 2029,
Maturity Profile of Secured Tenn Loans are as set out below :

i Malurity Profite | WonGurrent | Current
| Above Syears | 15ycars | Totat ]  year
HOFC Bank Limited 0.00 2213.56 221358 1238,03
Federat Bank Limited 871.36 4505.84 537721 1260,00
Axls Bank Limited 0.00 3564.81 3564.81 1323.93
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 0,00 3121.1¢ 3121.10 833.33
Total 871,36 13405.32 14276.68 4595.20
Nete - 16: Provisions - Non-Current
Provisicn for Employeo Banglits:
Gratuity 799.85 814,91
Earned Leave 127.87 -
927.73 814.91

Y




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to tho Financial Statements for the pariod ended March 31s1,2022

{€n Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st Mareh, 2021

Note - 17: income Tax
A Income Tax Expensas ! (Hanefits}

The Company is subject to Income tax In India on the basls of financial statemenis, As par Seclion 1158AA of Income Tax Act, the Company is Fable to pay income tax at Lhe alfactive tax rate
of 25,168 %

Companles can claim for tax exempticns/deductions under specific section subject to fulfilment of prescribed condilions as may be appicable.

Buginess loss can bo camried forward for a maximum period of eight assessmant yoars [mmediately sucteeding the assessment year to which the foss pertains. Unabscrbed depraciation can ba
carmied forward for an indefinite period.

The Reconcillation of Estimated incame Tax to Incoma Tax Expense [s as bolow: Az at As at
21 March, 2022 __31 March, 2021

Frofilf{loss) Befora Tax 11,425.60 8,67341
Applicable Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed Tax Expense 2,57560 218292
Tax effectof :

(i) Expenses Disaliowed 99.19 2695

{ii) Tax or income &t Ditferent Rales - (35.63)

{iii} Excess / (Short) Provision made Buting Last Financial Year (548} :
Current Tax Provislon 2,969.33 217424
Effactive Tax Rate 26% 25%

B, Deferred Tax Llabllity (Net)
The movemeni an lhe deferred tax account is as follows: N
At tha slart of the year 4,813,04 4,367.56

Charge/{Credit) la Statemant of Profit and Loss 413.69 447.30
Chargoe to Other Comprehansive Income 30.18 (4.82)
At the end of yoar 5.256.91 4,813.04

Component of Deforrad Tax Liabllities f (Asset}

Chargef (Cradit) Ger

As at] to Statement of Comprehensive As at)
Jist March,2021 Profit 31st March, 2022
Ircoma!
and Lossg
Defarred Tax Llabilities { {Asset) in relation to:
Properiy, Plani ard Equipment and Intangitle Assot 5,046.39 435,87 - 5482.25
Provisions {247,73) (22,18} 21,16 {248,75)
Financial Assets and Others (Net) 34.38 - 9.02 4340
Total 4,813.04 413,69 10.18 §,296.91

Mote - 18: Other Non-Current Llabliitles
Gavamment Grant {EPCG) 780.04 764.79

790.04 764.79




Notes to the Financlal Statements for the period ended March 31st,2022

STAR WIRE {ENDIA) LIMSITED

{T in Lakhs)
As at As at
Farticulars 31st March, 2022 21st March, 2021
Note - 19: Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks {Secured)
Working CapHtal Loans #
- Sfate Bank of India 222149 1,933.83
- HOFC Bank Limited 8,484.28 6,707.15
- Kolak Mahindra Bank Limited 812,57 369.98
- Yes Bank Limited 1.038.59 854,07
- Axis Bank Limited 2,218.93 1,857.67
- Citi Bank,N.A 5,689.56 4,954.93
- Fedaral Bank Limited 724,16 415,57
Other Loans and Advances (Secured)
Foreign Currency Loans - Buyers Credit
- Axis Bank Limited 2,111.08 932,19
- HDFC Bank Limiled 1.657.44 866.42
- Yos Bank: 1,097.84 -
Inland LC Bl Discounted .
- Axis Bank Limited 129.93 -
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
From Banks {Secured)
Term Loans #
- HDFC Bank Limited 1,238.03 1,203.67
- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 833.33 B33.33
- Axis Bank Limited 1,323.93 1,292.00
- Federal Bank Limited 1,206.00 266.67
Vehicle Loans
- HOFC Bank Limited 23.25 -
30,804.40 22,487.19

# Details of Security for Working Capital Loans:

(i} Working Capital Loans are secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Company’s stocks and book-debts, present and
future and by a second charge on all the movable properties of the company including plant and machinery spares, tools and accessories and
cther movables both present and fulure and by a second charge on all the immovable properties situated at village Chhainsa, Faridabad,
admeasuring 31,756 Acres, The Working Capital Loans are also secured by the persanal guarantees of Shri M K Gupta, Shri Samir Gupta and
Shri Abhishek Gupta Directors of the Company.

{if} During the year, working capilal lenders have revised their imils, thereby enhancing the overall fund based working capital limit tc Rs 24000
Lacs from previous limit of Rs. 20500 Lags and non fund based limits to Rs 13900 Lacs from previous iimit of Rs 11500 Lacs, the security
creation in respect of revised working capital imits is in process.

Note - 20: Trade payables

Creditors for Supplies and Services

9.280.33

7.695.24

9,280,33

7,695,24

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 2.3 More than 3 Total
1-2 years
1 vear Years years
(i) MSME 239.97 - - _ 239.97
(ii) Others 8,787.44 105,24 147,68 . 9,040.38

(iil) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - .
(iviDisputed dues - Others - - - . R

There are no material dues owed by the SWIL to Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than 45 days
during the year and as at 31 March 2022. This information as required under the Micro, Smalf and Medium Entqujé_ca, &
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of mt)fr' 0
available with the SWIL and has been relied upon by the auditors

}r,..




Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31st,2022

STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

{Z in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

As at
31st March, 2021

Note « 21: Other Financial Liabilities - Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Due to Employees

Expenses Payable

Creditors for Capilal Expenditure

Statutory Remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC,
Withholding Taxes, GST, VAT etc.}

Trade f Security Deposits Received

Note - 22: Other Current Llabllities
Advances from Custorners

Note - 23: Provisions - Current
Provision for Gratuity

Provisions for Bonus

Provisions for Medical Allowance
Provisicns for Leave Travel Allowance
Provisions for Eamed Leave
Provisions for CSR

L
&

13.12 -
457.00 267.84
280.49 50.24
899.83 47777
281.88 3i8.33
102.87 £9.16

2,035.19 1,183.31

1,666.69 1,652.86

1,666.69 1,652.96
188.49 169.39
364,20 -

37.49 -

17.76 -

37.66 -
280.28 237.58
926.88 406.58




STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31st,2022

{¥ in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
March-22 March-21
Note - 24: Revenue from QOperations
(a) Sales of Goods (Including GST)
{1} Indigenous Sales 47,353.74 39,713.66
{ify Export Sales 41,760.92 23,179.05
89.114.66 62,892.70
Less: GST Recovered 9,936.80 6,123.13
Total -{a) 79,177.86 56,769.57
{b) Sales of Services
Testing Charges 361.34 330.85
Total -{b) 361.34 330.85
{c) Other Operating Revenue -
{i} Income from sale of Unusable Material 541.57 158,71
(i} Trading Sales 1,479.78 -
{iv) Export Incentive** 462.75 1,124.38
Total -(c} 2,484.10 1,283.09
Total (a)+(b)+{c} 82,023.30 58,383.51

** MEIS scheme of duty drawback is now replaced with RoDTEP scheme and incentive of RoODTEP is not available for fron &
Steel Products, the income so considered on accrual basis during F.Y 2020-21 for the period Jan 21 to March-21 amounting to
Rs.146.01 Lacs has been reversed during the year,

Note - 25: Other income

(a) Interest Received 127.57 121.94
(b} Exchange Difference (Net) 1,933.24 376.94

(¢} Other Non-Operating Income :-
(i) Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 2.59 423.05
(ii) Other Income 2847 101.57
(iii} Government Grant (EPCG) 27.95 26.40
2,119.81 1,049.91

Note - 26: Other Comprehensive Income
{A) ltems that will not be Reclassified to Profit and Loss

(i) Change in Revaluation Surplus 35.83 1.39
(i) Remeasuremenits of the defined benefit plans 84.07 (8.60}
119.90 (7.21)
Note - 27: Cost of Materials Consumed )
Opening Stock 5,936.35 3,179.56
Add: Purchases including Freight Inward Charges 32,285,95 22,369.06
tess: Closing Stock §,223.88 5,936.35
Total 29,998.41 19,612.28
Note - 28: Purchase of Traded Goods
Traded Goods 1,435.67 -
1,435.67 -

Note - 29: Changes in Inventories of Finished Geods, Work-In-Progress and Stock-in-Trade
Inventories at the end of the vear:

Finished Goods 4,163.26 3,519.26

Work-In-Progress 19,856.32 11,009.97

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished Goods 3,5198.26 9,996.83

Work-In-Progress 11,009.87 2,649.32
Net {Increase) / Decrease (8,490.35) (1,883.08)

A




STAR WIRE {INDIA} LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31s¢,2022

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March-22 March-21
Note - 30: Employee Benefits Expense
- Salaries and Wages
Salaries, Wages and Other Allowances 3,658.02 2.812.01
Leave Encashment 230.50 80.02
Leave Travel Concession 89.10 46.30
Bonus 636.41 345.29
Recruitment Expenses 6.98 0.36
Discounting value of interest free loans to employees 1.85 0.71
Provision for Gratuity 143.12 144,86
Retrenchment Compensation - 4.56
Retirement Benefits - 6.08
- Contributions to Provident and Other Funds
Deposit Link Insurance Fund Charges {Staff) 2.80 222
ESI Contribution 12.33 11.17
PF Administrative Charges 12.98 10.47
PF Contribution 263.48 212.24
- Staff Welfare Expenses
Staff and Labour Welfare 119.19 93.78
Welfare Fund 8.23. 6.79
Uniform Expenses 2.74 1.74
5,188.72 3,778.60
Note - 31: Finance Costs
{a} Interest Expense on:
- Interest on borrowings 1,872.78 1,827.89
- Dividend on Redeemable Preference Shares & Taxes
thereon 14'19,.. 14'155
- Interest on Unsecured Loans 111.37 99,38
(b) ;; Exche_mge differences regarded as an adjustment to 111.29 3
orrowing costs
(c) - Other borrowing costs :
(i} Interest on Delayed / deferred payment of Govt dues 0.17 2.60
(if) Bank Charges 92.11 96.39
2,301.88 2,040.43
Note - 32: Other Expenses
32, a - Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 14,724.62 7,339.62
Contract Charges 6,098.57 4,430.53
Conversion & Stitching Charges 48.65 173.15
Machining Charges 720.34 713.78
Power and Fuel 12,751.62 8,949.56
Testing Charges 328.68 140.02
34,673.49 21,746.65
The details of R&D Expenses included in the Natural Head of Accounts are as follows (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Consumption of Materials 385.16 284,13
Conversion Cost 131.81 35.79
Total 516.97 319.92
b -
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Notes fo the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31st,2022

STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

March-22 March-21

32.b - Administrative Expenses
Charity & Donation 493 -

Directors Remuneration* 307.19 143.24
Directors Travelling Expenses 5.79 4.01
Electricity & Water Charges 26.54 24.63
Foreign Tours & Travelling Expenses 5.52 0.52
Foreign Tours & Travelling Expenses {Directars) 4.52 3.55
General & Miscellaneous Expenses 174.18 57.10
IT and Communication Expenses 163.78 164.17
Insurance Charges 260.77 245.29
Loss on Sale of Vehicle 22.32 9.62
Audit Expenses ** 24.26 12.38
Postage & Telegram Expenses 8.59 7.36
Printing & Stationery 32.26 32.54
Professional & Consultancy Charges 443.01 363.58
Rent 23.40 92.37
Rates & Taxes 23.72 17.31
Repair & Maintenance - Civil 42837 194.59
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 125.05 97.61
Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery 370.35 182.70
Security Charges 167.57- 129.81
Travelling & Conveyance 185.75 154.84
Provision for CSR*** 114.36 89.99
2913.24 2.027.22

* Remuneration Paid / Payable to Directors:

Managerial remuneration paid or payable during the period which is much less than the prescribed under

Companies Act, is as under:-

Salary
Directors' Sitting Fees

** Payments to the auditors comprises (net of GST

input credit, where applicable);
{a) Auditors - Statutory Audit
Statutory Audit Fees
Reimbursement of expenses

{b) Cost Auditors
Audit Fees
Reimbursement of Expenses

{c) Others
Tax Audit Fees

y

306.90
0.29

307.19

5.00
0.14

5.14

3.00

212

5.12

14.00

24.26

143.10
0.14
143.24




Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31s¢,2022

STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

{¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March-22 March-21
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
{i) Amount Required to be spent by the Company during .
the year, 114.36 89.99
(i} Amount of expenditure incurred, 35.66 10.80
{iil) Shortfall at the end of the year, 78.70 79.19
{iv) Total of previous years shortfall, 201.58 158.39

{v} Reason for shortfall,

Projects under
execution or not

Projects under
execution or not

{vi) Nature of CSR activities,

identified identified
Computer Training Computer Training
Center for Center for
boys,Sewing boys,Sewing

Training Center for
Girls,Donation made
to various charitable

trust's

Training Center for
Girls,Donation made
to various charitable

trust's

*** Details of CSR Provision

Opening Balance

Add:-Provision made during the year

Less:- Expenses made during the year

Closing Balance (As shown in Note No 23 of Balance Sheet)

32.c - Selling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion Expenses
Commission & Brokerage
Rent (S&D)
Freight and Forwarding
Custom Duty Paid On Overseas Sales
Trade Fare & Exhibition Expenses (incudling Tender fees)

-

237.58
114.36
71.66

280.28

158.3¢
89.99
10.80

33.05
103.19
80.21
3,162.23
142.68
38.05

237.58

3,559.42

15.47
58.39
93.35
1,196.66
46.66
1.08

41,146.14

1,411.60

25,185.48




STAR WIRE {INDIA]} LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31st,2022

As at
J1ist Blarch, 2022

Particwars

Nate - 33: Additlonal Inf tlon to the Fi lal Statements
1 Contingent Liabilitfes and Commitments {to the extent not provided for}
(i) Conlingent Liabilities
{a} Claims against the Company / disputed Fabiities not acknowledged as debt # 1217
(b} Guarantees

= Inland 4238
- Foreign ¢
{ii) Commitmenis
{a} Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capllat account and nat provided for
- Tangible assets 1871
- Inlangible assels o
{b) Uncalled Liability on Shares and Other Investmenls Parily Paid
{b) Gther Commitments {(specily nature}
- Bills drawn on Customers and Discounted with Banks at close of the year, i+
- Letter of Credit outstanding 1436
- Undertaking o fulfil} the export obligations {EPCG) iH

Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt
The company has not deposited Local Area Development Tax {LADT) from 2004-05 to 2017-18 imposed by Haryana State 856
Govemnment as it was held by the Hor'ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 30.10.2009 detail as under:
“There will be no recovery of lax till further orders of this Gour, subject 1o each and every assessee in this group of cases
givirg an undertaking o the State and to this Gourt that, in the event of thelr ullimately losing the matter, they shall pay the
amount due with interest at ihe rate that may be fixed by this Court al the time of fing) hearing of the matlers.”

Demand Orders of Custom & Central Excise Autharities disputed by the Company 200
Demand of addition Income Tax & inlerest pending with various appellate Aulharities, disputed by the Company 120

2 petails on Derivatives Instruments and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposures
|. The following derivative posifons are open as at 31 March, 2022:
{8} Forward exchange contracts and options [being detivative instruments), which are not intended for trading
or speculative purposes but for hedge purposes to establish the amount of reporting currency required ar
available at the setllement dale of certaln payables and recelvables,

Dutstanding forward exchange contracts antered inte by the Company:
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Cutrency Buy f Sel Crogs currency Amount (X} Cross currency Amount (T}
€ Sell F350000 ¥ 6,212 € 77,00,000 6,645
s Sell §250000 T7,004 $21,00,000 71,538
Total ¥43,216 8183

[T In Lakhs)
As at

Jist March, 2021

1189

5560

2656

2017
324

896

223
69

1l. The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivalive instrument or otherwise are given below. The unhedged expasures are nalurally

hedged by future farelgn currency eamings and eamings linked to forelgn cutrency.

A Buyers Credit:
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Recelvablel Receivable! (Payable) in Receivable/ Recelvabe/

{Payable) Foreign currency {Payable) (Payable) In
Forelgn currency
R (indicate amoun! with NR (inqicate amaunt

currency) with currency)
4866 $64,26,764 1798 $24,31,116

Packing Credit in F

oreign Currency {PCFC):

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Receivablel  |Recelvablef (Payable) in|  Recelvable/ Racalvable/
{Payable} Forelgn currency {Payable) (Payable) in
Forelgn currency
MR {Indicate amount with INR (Indicate amount
currency} with currency}
3,689 $48.72,080 2557 3441614
4.739 $56,07,593 5355 60,67,593
8,428 2




STAR WIRE {INDiA) LIMITED

Motas to the Financlal $tatemants for the year ended March 31st,2022

(¥ In Lakhs)
As at Az at
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

3 Disclesures Required Under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2406

{i} Principal amount céue and remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the end of the accounting year Nil Nit
{ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year Nil Mit
{i) The amaunt of interest paid along with the amounts of he payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed day Nil il
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year . NIt Hil
{v} The amount of interest accrued and remalning unpald at the end of the accounting year Nif Hil
(%) The amount of further Interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, unlil such date when the inlerest dues as Nii il

above are actually paid
Micrs, Small & Medium Enterprises have been ascertained on the basis claims furnished by the suppliers in this
regard. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

F-N

Employee Benefit Plans {Ind AS 19)

@ Defined Contribution Plans
The Company makes Provident Fund contribuliens to defined coniribution pfans for gualifying employees. Under the 263 212
Schemes, the Company Is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The
Company recognised the amount for Provident Fund contributions in the Stalement of Profit and Loss, The contributions
payabile to these plans by the Comparny are at rates specified in the rules of lhe schemes,

. Defined Benefit Plans {Gratuity}
1} Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 1140 1124
Current Service Cost 76 76
Interest Cost 67 §6
Actuanial {Gain) / Loss -84 [}
Past Service Cest Including Curiailment Gains/ Loss i) 0
Berefits Paid (139.08) {138)
Defined Benefit Obligation at year end $059.51 1140
if) Expenses recognised during the year

In Income Statement

Current Service Cost 76 78
interest Cost 67 66
Past Service Cost Including Curtallment Gains/! Loss a o}
Expected return on Plan assets & 0
Net Cost 143 145
In Giher Comprehensive Income

Actuarial {(Gzin} / Loss . (G2 9
Expected return on Plan assels 0 a
Net {Income) Expense For the periad Recognised in OGH (84} 8.6

i) Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount rate (per annum} 7.18% 6.80%
Salary escalation (Per Annum) 5.50% 5.50%
Aftrition {Per Annum) 2.00% 2,00%
Moartality tables LALM (2012-14) lALM (2012-14)

& Operating Segment reporting {Ind AS 108)
the Company is engaged in manufacture and sale (both domeslic and export) of Special Steel Products, which constitutes
single business segment. As per management’s perspective, the risks and returns from ils sales do not materially vary
geographically. Accordingly there are no other business / geagraphical segmants to be reported under Ind AS 108 isstied by

& Earning Per Equity Share (of Re. 1/- each) {Ind AS 33)

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equify Shareholders 8325 6499
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominatar for calculating EPS 279047500 278047500
Baslc Eamnings per share 298 233
Diluled Earnings per shara 2.98 233

Face Valve per equity share 1.00 1.00




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Motes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31582022

(2in Lakhs)
As at Asg at
Farticulars 315t March, 2022 31st Margh, 2021
7 Confirmation
* The company has requested for confirmations of balances from ils credilors and debtors, which has been confirmed by
majorily of crediters and debtors. Provisions, wherever considered necessary, have baen mada,
* In the opinion of the management the investment, current / non current assets are realizable at a value, al par as slated, in
the erdinary course of business and provisions for ail known and determined liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the
amount stated.
8 Detalls of Borrowlng Costs Capltalised (Ind AS 23}
Borrowing costs capialised during the year
- as fixed assels / capital workdn-progress 386 218
- 386 218

9 Related Party Disclosures {ind AS 24}
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

(i} List of related parlies where control exists and related parties with whom {ransactions have laken plage:

Sr, No, Name of the Related Party Relatlonshlp

1 Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta

2 Mr. Samir Gupta

3 Mr. Abhishek Gupla Key Management Personrnel
4 Ms. Mahima Gupta

5 Ms, Rekha Gupla

& Mr. Sita Ram Gupta Relative of kay Management Personnel
T M/s Sita Ram Mohinder Kumar

8 M/s Supreme Comm, Enterprises Lid

9 Mfs Eagle International Limited

10 M/s [nterglobal Steels P Limited

11 Mis Supersigma Alloy & Forgings Pyt Limited

12 Mfs Abbi Trading Company

13 Mfs Juhi leasing & Finance Limiled

14 Mis Star Wire Elect P Limited
15 M/s Star Wire (i} Biomass P Limited
16 Mis Star Wire {{} Engingering Limited

17 Saraswati charitable Trust

18 Shree Radha Krishna Charitable Trust .

19 Brijeshwari Dharmath Sansthan fvr:reg}?s ?ash{t:ri?g:l::l

20 Mahawar charitable Trust ic Ageme

21 Kuber Dharmarth Sansthan Personnel and their relatives

2 Mahawar Dharmarth Sansthan are able to exercise significant influence

23 M/s Nipin Steel Private Limited

24 Mfs Abhinandan Trafin Private Limited

25 M/s Cornfiower Vinimay LLP

76 M/s Ensel international LLP

27 Mfs Hollysea Finvest Pvt.Lid

28 Mfs Mumet (India) Pvt Lid

29 Mfs Padmanabh Steel & Trading LLP

30 Mfs Polylink Vinimay LLP

3 M/s Sun Scurce Leafin Private Limited

32 M/s Surendra Brolhers Engineers Privale Limited
32 M/ 5. J. Tea & Traders Limited Liability Parlnership




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year onded March 345t,2022

STAR WIRE {IND{A) LIMITED

10

1

12

13

14

{Zin Lakhs)
As at Asat
Particulars 315t March, 2022 15t March, 2021
{il} Transactions during the vear with refaled parlies:
Eitarprises | |
Assoclates over
which
- Rolative of key Management
St | rewmeniy 0| gt | Spsmagomant | orsonnlan
Personnel- thelr relatives are
able to exerclse
signiflcant
inflirence
1 Purchase of goods 528
(70%)
2 Sale of gonds 513
(1054)
3 Interest Received 61
(68)
3 Managerial Remuneration 07
{143)
4 Dividend Payment 14
{14)
5 Contract Charges f Machining Charges 962
(938)
6 Rent 10 1
(10) th)
7 interest Paid {4) 0 4
6 m (8)
3 Directors Meeting Fees 1]
V]
@ Job Work Charges Received 5
L]
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
10 Payables V] 237
0 (216}
11 Unsecured Loans 1432 L} 42
(1236} 0 (50
12 Investments 167
{131}
13 Bank / Corporate Guarantees 0
0
14 Receivables 83%
{909)
15 Loans & Advances Given 834
. {779

Impairment of the Assets (Ind AS 36)

In line with the requirements of indian Accounting Slandard — 36 on “impaimment of Assets” issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India, the company reviews the
carrying arount of its fixed assets on each balance sheet date {or the purpose of ascertaining impairment, if any, by considering assels of entire ane ptant as Cash Generating

Unit (CGUY. Dn such review as at 31% March 2021, wherever there was indication of impairment, the net realizable value thereof was assessed by the Management and the
same was more than the carrying amount. On further review as at 31 March 2022, these valualions of the assels canfinue to ba higher than the book value and accordingly,

no pravision is required to be made In the accounts.

Value of Imports Calculated on GIF Basls:
Raw Malerial & Stores
Capilat Goods
Software

Expensfiture in Forelgn Currency:
Teavelling
Commission & Brokerage
Professional and Consultation Feas

Freight Qutward

Testing Charges

BG Charges (Fareign)

Rent Charges
Details of Conrsumption of Imported and Indigenous ltems:
Imported

Raw Material and Stores & Spares
Indigenous

Raw Matetial and Stores & Spares

Earnlngs In Foreign Exchange:
Export of Goeds calculated on FOB basis

i

Total

Tetal

16543 7875
668 65

0 0
17231 7940,47
5 2

94 51

25 82
181 153
195 48

[ 17

90 a3
569 443
16264 7485
16264 1485
28459 186467
28459 19467
38934 23092
306934 23092




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year obided March 31st,2022

{Zin Lokhs)
Asat Asat

P
articulars 31st March, 2022 315t March, 2024

15 Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilifies are included at the amount that would be received (o sefl an assel and paid 1o transfer a lizbifity in an orderly transaction
behween market paricipants,

Thy following metheds and assumptions wera used fo estimate the falr values:

Trade teceivables, cash and cash equivalents, olher bank balances, short fermn loans, other current financial assets, gurrent borrawings, trade payables and other current
financlal Hiabllities:

The Company uses the faltowing hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques;

The following is the basis for categorising tha financial instrumants measured at fair value into Leve! 1 to Leve} &:

Level 1: This level includes financial assats that are measured by reference to quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markels for Identical assets or liabiiites;

Level 2: This lavel includes financial assets and liabllilies, measured using inpuls other than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are abservable for the asset or liability,
either directly (e., as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived frorm prices); and

Levet 3: This level includes financlal assels and kabilitles measured using inputs that are nat based on observable market data {unobservable inpuls). Falr values are

determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assurnplions that are neither supported by prices from observable curment market fransaclions in the same
instrument nor are they based on available market data,

As at 31st March,2022
Barticulars Carrying Amount | Level of input used In
| Level 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3
Flnancial Assets
At Amortlsed Cost
Trada Receviable 258637 - - 25,637
Cash & Cash Equivatents 39 - - 39
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 653 - - 653
Loans 27 - - 27
Oiher Financial Assets 3,479 - - 3479
At FVTOCI
Investment 167 | - - 167
Finaneial Llablitles
At Amortised Cost
Barrowing 46,973 - - 48,973
Trade Payables 9,280 - - 9,280
Other Financial Liabilities 2.035 - - 2.035
As at 31st March,2021
Particulars Carrying Amount Level of Input used in
Level1 Level 2 Leval 3
Financlal Assels
At Amortised tost
Trade Receviable 21,122 - - 21,122
Cash & Cash Equivalents 69 - - 6%
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 556 - - 556
Leans 55 - — 55
Other Financial Assels 4,177 - - 4,177
At FVTOCH
Investment 131 - - 13
Financial Liabliities
At Amortised Cost
Borowing 37,812 - - 37,812
Trade Fayables 7.695 - - 7,695
Other Financial Liabilities 1,163 - - 1,183

3—




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st,2022

% In Lakhs)
Rz at As at
Particulars 315t March, 2022 3184 March, 2021

16 Financial Risk Management
The Company's management monitors and manages the firancial risks relaling to tha operations of the Company. These risks include credit risk, fiquidity risk and market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk).
Credit Risk
Credit risk refers o the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial foss to the Company.
Financial instruments thal are subject to concentrations of crecit 7isk, principally consist of balance with banks, Investments in debt instrumentsfoonds, trade receivables, loans
and advances. None of the financial instruments of the Company fesultin maleria? concenteations of cradlt isks.
The age analysis of rade receivables as of the balance sheet date have been cohskdered from the due date and disclosed in below table.

As at March 31, [ As at Mareh 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Up to & menth 23,784 18,935
More than 6 month 1,853 2187

Llguidity Risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequalte reserves, banking facilities and reserve berrawing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actuat cash
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabllitles.
The surplus funds with the Company and operalional cash flows will be sufficient to dispsse the financial Kabilities within the maturity period.

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Partlctlars As at March 31,2022
0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Tetal

Borrowing { Including current maturity of long term bomowing 32,696 13405 871 46,973
Trade Payable 9,027 253 8,280
Other Current Liabilities 1,557 - - 30,804

| As at March 31,2021
Particulars I 0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Total
Borrowing { Including Current Maturily of Long Term Barrowingf 24,127 13,064 620 37,812
Teade Payable 7.595 7.695
Otber Current Liabililies 1,653 - - 1.653 |
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earmings, Inrealisable fair values orin fufure cash flows that may result fram a change In the price of a financial instrument. The
Company's activities expase it pimarily to the financial risks of changes In foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates fiskfliquldity risk which impact returns on

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure
to the risk of changes in market intevesl rates relates primaily to the debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

Particulars Asat s at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Borrowings 46,973 37.812
f%of Barrowings out of above bearing variable raie of interest 65.58% 59.47%]

Interast Rate Sensitivity:
A change of 100 bps in interest rates would have following Impact on profit before tax

Asat As at
Partlculars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
100 bp increase wauld desrease the profit before lax by 308 225
100 bp decrease would Increase (fe profit before tax by 308 225

Foreign Currency Risk Management
The Company undertakes fransactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctualions arise, The carrying amounts of the
Company's foraign currency denominated monetary assels and menetary liabilities at the end of the teparling pericd are as follows:

{Amount in Fx)
As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
Partlculars Forelgn Currency Fodeign Currency Foralgn Currency Foreign Currency
Maonetary Assets Monetary Manetary Asgets Manetary
Liabllities Liabilities
USD 72,74.875 1,28,39,857 35,01,489 8,94,979
EURQ 80,94.805 77,656,480 £0,13.4G0 27,20.445
AED 5362812 45,16,959 -
CNY _ B
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Notes to tha Financlal Statements for the yaar ended March 31st,2022

{¥ In Lakhs)
As at As at

i
Particulars 318t March, 2022 31t March, 2021

Foretgn Currency Sensitivity

The foflowing table details the Company's sensitivity 1o a 1% increase and decrease in INR against the relevant foreign currencies. 1% is the sensitivity rale used when
reposting foreign curency risk intemally to key management persennel and represents managemenl’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
fates. The sensilivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreigr curency denominated monetary ilems. A posilive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where
INR strengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of INR against the relevant currency, lhere would be a comparable impact on the prolit or equity, and
the batances below wouks be negalive.

As at March 37,2022 As at March 31,2021

Partioulars 1% Inerease 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Becrease
Foreign Gurrenty Monetary Assets
ush 55 (55) 26 (26) |
EURD 68 {68) 52 {52}
AED 13 1) E] [
CNY
Foreign Currency Monelary Lianilities
s {97) 97 [ 7
EURG {65) 86 (23} 23
AED
CHNY
Impact on Profit and Loss as al the end of Reporting Year
]

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherant foreign exchange risk because the exposure al the end of the reporting pericd does ngt
reflect the expasure during the year,

17 Annexure 0" on Quanititative Informaticn for the year ended 31* March 2022 attached
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STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st,2022

{Z in Lakhs)
Note No 34 (A} :- Additional Regulatory Information

(i} There is no immovable property the title deed of which is not held in the rame of Company as on the Reporting Date.

(i) There is no investment property held by Company as on the Reporting Date,

{iil) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during current Reporting Period.

{iv) The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during current Reporting Period.

(v) The Company has not given any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to its promolers, directors, KMPs and the related parties a5 on reporting date,
(vi)  Capital-Work-in Pragress {CWIP)-Ageing Schedule

Amount in CWIP for a pericd of

WP 2.3 More than 3 Total*
Less than 1 year 1-2 years vears years

Projects in progress 645.02 186.76 10.08 2,642.49 3,484.35

{vii} There is no intangible assets held under development as on the reporting date,
{viit} There is no Benami property held by the Company as on reperling date and no proceeding has been initiated agaisnt

the Compnay for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibifion) Act, 1938 {45 of 1988} and
tules made thereunder

{ix} All the Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by Company with banks are in agreement with the bocks of accounts during the
reporting period.

(x) Company has not been declared wilful defaultfer by any bank, financial institution or cther lender during the reporting pericd.

{xi) As per the information obtained by Company and as furnish by it's customers, creditors or other’s, the Compnay does
not have any transactions with struck-off Company during the Reporting Period.

{xii} There is no charges or satisfaction yet o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period as on Reporting Date.

(xiii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read with
the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 during the Reporting Period.,

{xiv} Separate sheet has been attached for Ratio analysis.
(xv} There are no scheme of Arrangements as approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of
the Companies Act, 2043 during the reporting period

{xvi} Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(A) Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person ar entity including foreign entities or
provided any guarantee/ security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries during the reporting period.

(B) Company has not received any fund from any person or entity including foreign entiies or provided any
sectirity or the fike to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries during the reporting period.

3
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STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st,2022
Note No 34 (B} : Ratio Analysls:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Formula Change {in %}
202422 2020-21
" {Current Assets). o
(a) Current Ratio 1.49 1.48 (Current Liabilities) 0.22%
. " Total Debt/ o
{b) Debt-Equity Ratio 0.29 0.33 Total Equity -10.58%
N " {PAT+Interest+Dep+Interest on TL+Deferred Tax
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 260 224 Liability){Interest On TL+ Repayment of TL done} 15.81%
{¢) Return on Equity Ratie 0.15 0.14 PAT/Totat Equity B.56%%
{Cost of Material Consumed+Wages+Manufacturing
(e} Inventory turnover ratio . 9.13 9.07 Expenses){(Op Stock+Closing Stock)?) 0.66%
{f) Trade Receivables tumover ratio 3.39 2.82 Value of Sales & Services (Excluding GST 19.92%
Average Trade Receivables
. (Purchase of Raw Material & Stores+Manufacturing Exp)f 009
() Trade payables turnover ratio 7.33 7.40 Avg Payable 0.92%
(h) Net capital turnover ratio 1.49 1.25 {Net Sales)/(Total Equity) 19.06%
. " i Profit After Tax (after exceptional items)/ _a 899
(i} Net profit ratio 9.89% 10.84%, Valtze of Total Revenue - 9.52%
’ . (PBT+Financial Cost)/ "
(i) Return on Capital employed 13.44%, 12.67% {Total Equity+Total Debt) 6.08%
(k} Return on investment 10.60% 9.72% (Net Profit/(Cost of Investment) 9.08%

The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped ! reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

As per our repart of even date: For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For PRYD & Assocfates -

Chartered Accountants (Subash Singh Virdi)

Registration No.: 011626N Executive Director {Mohinder Kumar Gupta}

Managing Director
DIN - 00054110

(Binod Kumar Mishra)

Chief Finangce Officer
/ /
Membership No.: 094667 {Rekha Sharma) {Samir Gupta)
Place: New Delhi Jt.GM Legal & Company Secreta Whole Time Direclor

Date: 27th,August 2022 M No: FCS 6428 DN - 00054308
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